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Five Years Financial Summary

EFHBRE

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
total equity of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the Group’s audited financial statements, is set
out below:

(A) RESULTS &

ATH/ASEBEREAMBFRE ZE A
X BE RAEMRAEaBERE T
MEEARE 2 RERMBHRE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-RA=+t—-HLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-1f —T-NF —B-=F “F--F _F——#F
TR FET FAET THET FAT
Revenue W
- Continuing operations*  —#FEQL L £ 721,810 481,571 322,896 188,702 727,500
- Discontinued — BRI+
operation** - - - 361 236,620
(Loss)/Profit before income TS HIATIS &L
tax from continuing %% (B518)
operations S A (385,109) (377,592) (343,589) (383,915) 105,303
Income tax credit/(expense) Fr5Hi#E %~
(Fx) 14,777 3,925 (3,922) 1377  (81,155)
(Loss)/Profit after tax from BRFR1B I B LKL
continuing operations 7% (&58),/
st (370,332) (373,667) (347,511) (382,538) 24,148
Profit from discontinued B 4% 1F % 753 7
operations - - - 5,204 8,939
Loss/(Profit) attributable to  JE1% B& #E 25 FE 1
non-controlling interests &8,/ (& F) 35,015 26,335 24,056 33,085 (7,471)
(Loss)/Profit attributable KRNBHER AEAE
to the owners of the (&) /5 H
Company (335,317) (347,332) (323,455)  (344,249) 25,616

* Continuing operations for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 represented the
production and sale of coal and trading of
purchased coal (2013, 2012 and 2011: the
production and sale of coal).

**  Discontinued operations for the year ended 31
December 2012 represented coalbed methane
related business (2011: Trading of purchased coal
and coalbed methane related business).
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Five Years Financial Summary

EFHBRE

(B) ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND TOTAL EQUITY EE BEMRAREEHAE
As at 31 December

Wt+=-—RA=+-—-H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
“E-R1F —T—WNF ZT—=F ZT——-F _T——F

TERT TEL TET THET TET

Non-current assets ERBNEE 902,177 1,266,545 1,400,060 1,375,767 1,467,251
Current assets MENEE 1,466,044 1,140,579 1,234,757 1,969,701 1,651,210
Total assets BB E 2,368,221 2,407,124 2,634,817 3,345,468 3,118,461
Current liabilities mEaE 1,887,862 1,513,545 1,396,475 1,660,043 1,057,664
Non-current liabilities SERBAE 102,531 118,201 73,097 203,314 198,622
Total liabilities waE 1,990,393 1,631,746 1,469,572 1,863,357 1,256,286
Total equity A= 2 E 377,828 775,378 1,165,245 1,482,111 1,862,175
— attributable to the —KAREB A
owners of the Company FEfh 403,125 763,188 1,124,706 1,425,177 1,772,723
- Non-controlling interests ~ — FE4% IR 4 25 (25,297) 12,190 40,539 56,934 89,452
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

| am pleased to present on behalf of the board (the “Board”)
of directors (the “Directors”) to the shareholders the report
on the results on Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”).

MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In the recent years, coal mining business remained challenging.
Due to the continuous slowing down of economic growth
in China, both the coal industry and the Company could not
achieve a turnaround result in the year 2015. The fact was
reflected from the decline in domestic coal price and the
weakening in coal consumption.

The GDP of China hit 25-year low at 6.9% for the year 2015.
The slowing down in GDP growth rate of China implied that
the recent economic environment of China is not in a favorable
condition. The coal price was being on a downward track in
the past few years, it was mainly due to the insufficient market
demand and oversupply in the coal market.

In addition to the economic factors, coal industry is also facing
different challenges, such as government’s encouragement
in coal mines consolidation and restructuring, the combat
against air pollution, and the increasing awareness of general
public to environment protection. Therefore, coal enterprises
within mainland China were under immense pressure in their
operations and productions.

In order to increase the safety standard of coal mines, the
National Energy Administration and the State Administration
of Coal Mine Safety have conducted strict controls on mines
arouse from the problem of overcapacity and safety. At the
same time, the government has put much effort to promote
alternative renewable energy, such as solar energy, water
energy and wind energy, with the objective to lower the
environment pollution resulted from coal mining. Hence, it
is expected that China’s coal consumption and demand will
hardly be increased significantly in the foreseeable future.

Although the coal business is in difficulties, the Group has
still worked with its employees to strive for achievements.
The Group has continued to strengthen the cost control in
operation and coal production, so as to overcome the current
unfavorable market environment. Moreover, in such situation,
the Group is going to enhance its business management and
the sales channels, to ensure steady revenue generating ability,
and endeavor to improve the operating environment.
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The Group’s revenue was derived from two sectors, i.e. the
coal production business and coal trading business. During the
Year with unfavorable business environment, the revenue of
the Company was mainly derived from coal trading business
which was considered as a more effective income generating
sector.

Closure of a Coal Mine

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 7 January 2016, one of coal mines of the Group,
Xiaohe Coal Mine No. 2 (the “Mine”), has been closed and
its operations has been ceased. After considering the current
downturn of the coal market in mainland China, the remaining
resources available in the Mine and the quality of coal of the
Mine, it was concluded that it would be more cost effective
to close the Mine permanently. The Group's remaining four
coal mines will continue in operations. The Company expects
the closure of the Mine would not make significant impact on
the financial position of the Group. In order to maintain the
revenue of the Group, the Company will continue to maximize
the available resources on the operation of remaining coal
mines of the Group.

PROSPECT

The coal market was facing with difficulties in 2015. It
remained weak in general and is yet to show signs of recovery.
Numerous coal mining companies were suffering losses under
the recent market conditions. The coal price continues to
remain at low level during the tide of oversupply.

Looking ahead, the Group will make better use of existing
resources to enhance the efficiency of the coal mines for
better shareholders’ returns. In order to achieve sustainable
development in the future, the Group is seeking opportunities
for development of various businesses and making new
investments.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my most sincere thanks and gratitude to
our shareholders, and various parties for their continue
encouragement and support. | would like also to thank
my fellow directors and all stuff for their considerable
contributions to the Group.

Dong Cunling
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s total revenue for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$721.8 million, representing an increase
of approximately 49.9% from approximately HK$481.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Last
Year”). The increase in revenue was primarily due to the
significant increase in trading of purchased coal during the
Year. During the Year, trading of purchased coal and sales
from coal production contributed approximately 78.3% (the
Last Year: approximately 68.6%) and approximately 21.7%
(the Last Year: approximately 31.4%) of the total revenue
of the Group. In order to maintain the Group's revenue, the
Group has allocated more resources in the business of trading
of purchased coal. Therefore, the revenue from the business
of trading of purchased coal and the total revenue has an
increase compared with the Last Year.

During the Year, the total sales volume of coal has reached to
approximately 1,929,000 tons which was higher than the sales
volume of the Last Year (approximately 1,168,000 tons) by
approximately 65.2%, in which, approximately 1,316,000 tons
or approximately 68.2% (the Last Year: approximately 678,000
tons or approximately 58.0%) were contributed by coal trading
business.

Although the sales volume has been improved for the VYear,
the selling price of coal has kept to move downward resulting
from the continuous oversupply of coal in the PRC. The
average selling price of coal has dropped from approximately
RMB327.0 per ton for the Last Year to approximately
RMB301.1 per ton for the Year. The continuous dropping in
the coal price has override the impact of the increase in sales
volume.

Cost of Sales and Gross Loss

The cost of sales and gross loss for the Year were
approximately HK$847.3 million (the Last Year: approximately
HK$527.2 million) and approximately HK$125.5 million (the
Last Year: approximately HK$45.6 million) respectively. The
increase in gross loss was mainly due to the increase in revenue
could not overwhelm the increase in the cost of sales. During
the Year, the Group had to increase the proportion of coal
trading for the overall revenue to support its operation during
the poor market condition. However, as the cost to purchase
coal from suppliers was higher than the cost from the Group’s
own production, higher amount of total cost of sales was
incurred during the Year. Moreover, continuous expenditures
were incurred for the operation of the Group’s coal mines
during the Year, the cost of sales hence the gross loss has kept
to increase consequently.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The gross loss margin was increased from approximately 9.5%
for the Last Year to approximately 17.4% for the Year. During
the Year, the average selling price of the coal produced by
the Group's coal mines was lower than the Last Year (the
Year: approximately RMB209.3, the Last Year: approximately
RMB275.8). This was mainly caused by (i) the continuous
decline of the market coal price in the PRC, as well as (ii) the
comparatively lower average quality of the coal produced by
the Group’s coal mines during the Year. Despite the decline
in average selling price of the coal produced by the Group’s
coal mines, the costs for coal production maintained was in
relatively high level. On the other hand, although the revenue
of the Group contributed by trading of purchased coal was
increased, the gross profit contributed was limited and could
not override the impact of gross loss derived from the coal
production business. As such, the gross loss and gross loss
margin for the Year were higher than that for the Last Year.

Net Loss Attributable to the Owners of the Company

The net loss attributable to the owners of the Company for
the Year was approximately HK$335.3 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 3.5% as compared with the
Last Year of approximately HK$347.3 million. The reasons
for the decrease in net loss attributable to the owners of
the Company were mainly due to: (i) the increase in other
income from approximately HK$68.8 million for the Last Year
to approximately HK$83.0 million for the Year; and (i) the
gain on disposal of an associate of approximately HK$25.1
million recognised during the Year. The above factors for
the decrease in net loss attributable to the owners of the
Company were partially offset by (i) the increase in gross loss
as explained in the precedent paragraph; and (ii) the increase
in impairment loss on certain tangible and intangible assets
during the impairment assessment. Given the continuous
decline of the market coal price in the PRC during the Year
and the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the Group made an impairment loss
of approximately Nil (the Last Year: approximately HK$69.0
million), approximately HK$120.0 million (the Last Year:
approximately HK$67.4 million) and approximately HK$110.3
million (the Last Year: approximately HK$67.1 million) on
goodwill, the property, plant and equipment and the mining
rights respectively.

EEENWE DM

FEXRE—FEZHIS%EMEAFE
ZHNT A% - AAFE - REBERATEE
B FEHEBERE—FE (AFE: 4
ARME20937 E—FE : HHARME275.8
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AFEEEEREBERSRE—FE-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Administrative Expenses

During the Year, the total administrative expenses amounted
to approximately HK$63.7 million (the Last Year: approximately
HK$78.0 million) which mainly comprised of: (i) employee
benefit expenses of approximately HK$27.3 million (the
Last Year: approximately HK$27.9 million), (ii) amortisation
of mining right and other intangible assets amounted to
approximately HK$9.1 million (the Last Year: approximately
HK$8.7 million), and (iii) depreciation of property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately HK$4.4 million (the
Last Year: approximately HK$5.3 million). The decrease in total
administrative expenses was mainly because of continuous cost
control measurements carried out by the Group in different
areas during the Year.

Finance Costs

The finance costs decreased by approximately 14.4%
from approximately HK$56.6 million for the Last Year to
approximately HK$48.5 million for the Year. The decrease in
the total finance costs was mainly due to the decrease in the
average amount of bank borrowings during the Year.

Accounts and Bills Receivables

As at 31 December 2015 (the "“Current Year End”), the
accounts and bills receivables amounted to approximately
HK$185.4 million, representing an increase of 9.0% as
compared to the accounts and bills receivables as at 31
December 2014 (the “Last Year End”) of approximately
HK$170.0 million. The increase was mainly because the
customers of the Group have also faced with the unfavorable
economic condition of the PRC and they have slightly slowed
down the repayment period.

Amongst the total amount of accounts receivable (excluding
the bills receivable) as at the Current Year End, Henan Zhongfu
Dianli Company Limited* (“Zhongfu”) (A FEHHER A
A]) was the largest debtor who has contributed approximately
HK$91.9 million (equivalent to approximately RMB77.0 million)
or approximately 51.2% of the total accounts receivable
amount. The entire outstanding amount of the accounts
receivable from Zhongfu was not past due. The Board
therefore concluded that no impairment is needed to be made
on the outstanding amounts due from Zhongfu.

* For identification only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Accounts and Bills Payables

Bills payable as at the Current Year End amounted to
approximately HK$772.9 million (the Last Year End:
approximately HK$356.8 million) which contributed
approximately 96.6% (the Last Year End: approximately
91.5%) of the total amount of accounts and bills payables
as at the Current Year End, i.e. approximately HK$799.8
million (the Last Year End: approximately HK$390.1 million).
In order to enhance the operational cash flow and liquidity,
more bills were issued to suppliers for settlement. Therefore,
the bills payable as at the Current Year End has increased by
approximately HK$416.1 million or approximately 116.6%.

Other Payables and Accruals

The total amount of other payables and accruals have been
decreased by approximately 0.5% from approximately
HK$471.7 million as at the Last Year End to approximately
HK$469.2 million as at the Current Year End. As at the
Current Year End, the other payables were mainly comprised
of provision for PRC retirement benefit scheme contributions
amounted to approximately HK$199.4 million (the Last
Year End: approximately HK$211.1 million), accrued coal
mines related removal and relocation expenses amounted
to approximately HK$66.7 million (the Last Year End:
approximately HK$52.7 million), accrued workers' wages and
benefits amounted to approximately HK$40.2 million (as at the
Last Year End: approximately HK$49.7 million).

ESTIMATED COAL RESOURCES OF THE COAL
MINES OF THE GROUP

The following table summarised the estimated coal resources
of the coal mines of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and
2014:

EEENWE DM
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As at As at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
mt mt
R-ZE—RF RZT—HEF
+=A +=A
=+—AH =+—H
BEM HEM

Coal mines owned by the Group REEEBHEE
(i) Xiaohe Coal Mine No.1 () /N —1E 7.0 7.1
(i) Xiaohe Coal Mine No.2 (i) /MRl —F& 1.5 1.6
(iii) Xiaohe Coal Mine No.3 (i) /A =1 1.7 1.7
(iv) Xiangyang Coal Mine (iv) mIR5 & 14.8 14.9
(v) Xingyun Coal Mine (v) L8 B 3.6 3.7
28.6 29.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Notes:

(1) Major assumptions adopted for the annual updates on the
above estimated coal resources were:

(M Original coal resources of each coal mine were made
reference to the relevant coal resources reports and/or coal
mine information available to the Group at the time of
acquisition of the respective coal mines;

(i) Annual updates on the estimated coal resources for each
coal mine as at Current Year End were calculated as
follow:

(Estimated coal resources as at the Last Year End) — (Actual
coal production volume for the Year);

(iii)  There was no material structural change within the coal
mines that will cause the significant deviation between the
actual coal resources and the above annual updates.

(2) There was no material change of the above assumptions as
compared with the Last Year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at the Current Year End, the net asset value of the Group
was approximately HK$377.8 million (as at the Last Year End:
approximately HK$775.4 million) and the total cash and bank
balance (including pledged bank deposit) was approximately
HK$1,119.0 million (as at the Last Year End: approximately
HK$780.8 million). As at the Current Year End, the Group had
net current liabilities of approximately HK$421.8 million (as
at the Last Year End: approximately HK$373.0 million) and
its current ratio increased from 0.75 times as at the Last Year
End to 0.78 times as at the Current Year End. The Group’s
working capital was mainly financed by internal cash flow
generated from its operation and the banking facilities granted
by financial institutions.

As at the Current Year End, the Group’s accounts
receivable, net of any provision for impairment amounted
to approximately HK$179.4 million (as at the Last Year
End: approximately HK$169.7 million) and certain accounts
receivable were pledged to secure bank loans of the Group.
Subsequent to 31 December 2015 and up to the date of
the Company’s announcement of final results for the Year,
accounts receivable amounted to approximately HK$137.8
million has been settled.

As at the Current Year End, bank deposits amounted to
approximately HK$577.8 million (as at the Last Year End:
approximately HK$255.9 million) were pledged and not
available for the operation or repayment of debts of the
Group. Cash and cash equivalents which was not pledged
amounted to approximately HK$541.2 million (as at the Last
Year End: approximately HK$524.8 million).

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at the Current Year End, the Group has bank loans
amounted to approximately HK$525.0 million (as at the Last
Year End: approximately HK$560.8 million). The bank loans
bear interest at fixed rates ranging from 4.04% to 10.92% per
annum (as at the Last Year End: at fixed rates ranging from
4.44% to 9.99% per annum).

As at the Last Year End, the entire balance of the Group’s bills
payable were secured by the Group’s pledged time deposits, in
which approximately HK$75.6 million were also guaranteed by
the independent third parties.

As at the Current Year End, approximately HK$661.3 million
of the Group’s bills payable were secured by the Group’s
pledged time deposits, in which approximately HK$47.7
million were guaranteed by independent third parties whereas
approximately HK$35.8 million were jointly guaranteed by a
shareholder of the Company and independent third parties.
Also, approximately HK$111.6 million of the Group’s bills
payable were guaranteed by independent third parties as at
the Current Year End.

The Group’s gearing ratio (as a ratio calculated by (a) the sum
of bank loans and amount due to an associate; divided by (b)
the net assets of the Group) was 165.2% (as at the Last Year
End: 85.9%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any capital
commitments.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the Year.

SAFETY PRODUCTION AND ENVIRONMENT
PROTECTION

The Group has always paid great attention to production
safety and environmental protection while achieving growth
in coal production. Thus, the Group makes great efforts in
promoting safety management and strengthening measures
for environmental protection, aiming at building itself into a
safety-oriented and environmentally-friendly enterprise.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dong Cunling, aged 54, has been the executive director
of the Company and chairman of the Board since December
2011 and March 2012. He holds a professional diploma in
Chinese Language of Henan University, the PRC. Mr. Dong was
a college teacher in Dengfeng Municipal of Henan Province,
the PRC. Mr. Dong joined Henan Jinfeng Coal Industrial
Group Company Limited ("Jinfeng"), i.e. a subsidiary of the
Company, since 2003. He held several positions in Jinfeng
and he is currently a director of Jinfeng. He has extensive
experience in the management of coal mines.

Mr. Chen Xu, aged 48, has been the executive director of the
Company since September 2013. Mr. Chen graduated with
master degree of laws from Peking University Law School. He
has obtained extensive management experience from different
enterprises, including Japanese based company, stated-
owned enterprise in China and multinational companies. He
has involved in negotiations for several important overseas
investment projects and trading agreements. He has obtained
the relevant qualification as a legal consultant and he
specialises in international trading, energy and economic
analysis. He currently holds the position of the PRC Legal
Officer of the Company.

Mr. Wu Jiahong, aged 49, has been the executive director of
the Company since 2006. He holds a Bachelor of Art diploma
from the Beijing Foreign Studies University of Beijing, the
PRC and a Master of Business Administration degree from
the Georgetown University in the United States. He has over
21 years of experience in corporate finance and strategic
management. He is responsible for the management and
financial operation of the Group. Mr. Wu was an independent
non-executive director (resigned in May 2015) of Shun Cheong
Holdings Limited, which is listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yang Hua, aged 38, has been the executive director
of the Company since June 2010. Mr. Yang also served as
deputy chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
since April 2012. He graduated with Master of Business
Administration from the Business School of National University
of Singapore and with a Bachelor of Art from Beijing Foreign
Studies University. After graduation from the university in
Beijing, he has joined a state-owned enterprise and involved
in energy trading, economic environment analysis on global
energy market and risk control. He has also acted as a trader
in PRC for international commodities futures contracts and
derivative products. Mr. Yang has extensive experience in
financial market and risk management.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Zhou Guangwen, aged 47, has been the executive
director of the Company since February 2012. He graduated
with Doctor of Philosophy from Peking University of the
PRC. Mr. Zhou has extensive working experience as a senior
management in certain local bank and security company
in the PRC. He is currently the president of Ginkgo Capital
Management Co., Limited which specialises in asset
management and securities investment. Mr. Zhou is one of
the first batch of the people in the PRC to engage in securities
industry.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Chunyan, aged 52, has been the non-executive
director of the Company since December 2011. He is currently
a registered lawyer at Henan Shi Ji Tong Law Firm (f &t
4IBERIE AT in the PRC and is also a certified public
accountant, certified public valuer and certified tax agent
in the PRC. Mr. Li has acted as a legal adviser to the Henan
Provincial People's Hospital, the Henan TV Station and certain
listed companies in the PRC. Mr. Li was an independent non-
executive director in three PRC listed companies during the
period from 2002 to 2008. He was an independent non-
executive director (resigned in 2014) of Henan Pinggao Electric
Co., Ltd which listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange of
the PRC. Mr. Li is an independent non-executive director of
Zhongyu Gas Holdings Limited since October 2010, which is
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chen Renbao, aged 53, has been the independent non-
executive director of the Company since December 2011.
He received his Bachelor of Arts in Economics from Anhui
University, the PRC, in 1985. After graduated from Anhui
University, Dr. Chen received his Master of Arts in Demography
in 1989, Ph.D. in insurance and Ph.D. in Demography from
the University of Pennsylvania, the United States, in 1993. Dr.
Chen acted as a director of US Keywise Capital Management
and consultant for the NUS Endowment Fund. He was an
independent non-executive director (resigned in 2013) of
Guangdong Midea Electric Appliances Co., Ltd which is listed
in Shenzhen Stock Exchange of the PRC. He currently acts
as a consultant in a number of PRC and overseas companies
to provide financial and risk management consultation and
training services to those companies.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBE

Mr. Jiang Xiaohui, aged 49, has been the independent
non-executive director of the Company since July 2014. He
graduated with bachelor degree of laws from Southwest
University of Political Science and Law in China. He has been
engaged in the legal profession since 1990 and he is currently
an associate professor of Law in Henan University of Economics
and Law. He has served as legal counsel for several state-
owned banks in China as well as some well-known enterprises
located in Henan Province. Mr. Jiang has also involved in
the legal education and research in relation to the areas of
economic, civil and commercial. He has also participated in
economic and civil litigations for over 18 years.

Mr. Ma Yueyong, aged 51, has been the independent non-
executive director since December 2011. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Accounting from Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law (formerly known as Zhongnan University of Finance
and Economics), the PRC. He has also achieved postgraduate
qualification in Accounting from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics, the PRC. Mr. Ma was appointed as an
executive director and an independent non-executive director
in three PRC listed companies during the period from 1998
to 2004. Mr. Ma was an independent non-executive director
(resigned in 2014) of Henan Linzhou Heavy Machinery Co.,
Ltd. which is listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange of the PRC.
He is a certified public accountant in Reanda Certified Public
Accountant Co., Ltd. Henan Branch in the PRC since April
2011. Mr. Ma is a financial controller of Zhengzhou New
Dafang Heavy Industry Science & Technology Co., Ltd since
January 2013.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Chun On, aged 42, joined the Group in September
2006 and is currently a company secretary, chief financial
officer and an authorised representative of the Company. He
graduated with bachelor degree in accounting from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Li has more than 20 years of
experience in accounting and corporate financial management.
Mr. Li is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, United
Kingdom.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except for the deviation as set
out below.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The non-executive director
and independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) of the
Company do not have a specific term of appointment, but are
subject to rotation in accordance with bye-law 111 of the Bye-
laws of the Company. As the non-executive director and INEDs
of the Company are subject to rotation in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company, the Board considers that the non-
executive director and INEDs of the Company so appointed
with no specific term will not impair the quality of corporate
governance of the Company as required by the principle of
good governance laid down in A.4 of the CG Code.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that the
INEDs and the non-executive directors should attend general
meetings. However, the independent non-executive director
of the Company, Mr. Ma Yueyong was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held in Hong Kong on
22 May 2015 as he was absent from Hong Kong.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors.
Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors have fully
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERBERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine
Directors and its composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Dong Cunling (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Hua (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Wu Jiahong

Mr. Zhou Guangwen

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Li Chunyan

INEDs

Dr. Chen Renbao
Mr. Ma Yueyong
Mr. Jiang Xiaohui

The brief biographical details of the Directors and the
relationship among them are set out in the section headed
“Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in the 2015
annual report of the Company, of which this report forms part.

RESPONSIBILITY OF BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board determines the overall strategies, monitors and
controls operating and financial performance and sets
appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are those
affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and
shareholders including financial statements, dividend policies,
significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investment. Day-to-day management of the Group’s
businesses is delegated to the executive Directors or senior
management. The Board reviews the delegation of power
and functions from time to time to ensure effectiveness and
appropriateness.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERHE

ATTENDANCE OF THE BOARD AND BOARD
COMMITTEEES

The Board meets regularly during the Year and the Directors
have made active contribution to the affairs of the Group. The
following table shows the attendance of all the Directors at the
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2015:

HEESERZEEEERNEY

EXEeNFAEHETEREREESF I
AEBEZEBELBEEHEER - TRETRE
BEEREE_T—RF+-A=+—H
FEAHFEERNER:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEE/EERH

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
= EE® ENRZE® FMZEE REZE® REAE
Executive Directors HTE=S
Mr. Dong Cunling ERREE 717 - - - 1
Mr. Chen Xu BRLE 177 = = = Al
Mr. Wu Jiahong RRAEAE 27 - = = 0/1
Mr. Yang Hua BELE 6/7 = = = 0/1
Mr. Zhou Guangwen FREXERE 07 - - - 0/1
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Li Chunyan TEERE 27 - - - 17
INEDs BUFHTES
Dr. Chen Renbao BRCEET 417 22 1/1 17 17
Mr. Ma Yueyong ERELE 47 2 0 " 01
Mr. Jiang Xiaohui EEBLL 27 02 0/1 0/1 171

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER EFRRATHAE

The positions and roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are held and performed
separately by two individuals to ensure their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility. The Chairman,
being Mr. Dong Cunling is responsible for corporate planning
and market development. The Chief Executive Officer, being
Mr. Yang Hua, who performs the functions of chief executive
of the Group, is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Group.

SRS IFENRRITHAAE A BB
BEMAALTDRIEERET AINRK
FxamMBLE HEEREEE-TFE
FRETABELCEREILTIZER -1TH
BEBERERT AR EITRARE BT -
BEAKBENAEER-

BMEEREREBRLA 201555

19



20

Corporate Governance Report
TERERBERE

INEDS

One-third of the members of the Board consist of INEDs and at
least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received from each independent non-executive
director of the Company an annual confirmation of his
independence for the year ended 31 December 2015 pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all
INEDs to be independent during the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term
and subject to re-election. The non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms but they are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings
("AGM") of the Company. Pursuant to bye-law 111 of the
Bye-laws of the Company, each director of the Company shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Board considers that the non-executive Directors so
appointed with no specific term will not impair the quality of
corporate governance of the Group required by the principle of
good governance laid down in A.4 of the CG Code.

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company are available and
accessible on the Company’s website at http://www.irasia.com/
listco/hk/rrhl.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the Year, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognises
that increasing diversity at the Board level will support
the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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The nomination committee will give consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified candidates,
to become members of the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Dr. Chen Renbao
(as chairman), Mr. Jiang Xiaohui and Mr. Ma Yueyong as at
the date of this report. During the Year, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting. The attendance record of the
committee is set out in the table on page 19 of the annual
report.

The principle role and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are to review the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and key executives, including
salaries, bonuses, benefits in kind and the terms on which they
participate in any share options and other plans considering
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and key
executives, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration and making
recommendations to the Board from time to time.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Dr. Chen Renbao, Mr. Jiang
Xiaohui and Mr. Ma Yueyong (as chairman) as at the date of
this report. During the Year, the Nomination Committee held
one meeting. The attendance record of the committee is set
out in the table on page 19 of the annual report.
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis
and to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
board members. It is also responsible for assessing the
independence of INEDs and making recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
remappointment of director and succession planning for the
Directors. The Nomination Committee reviewed the board
diversity policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set
for implementing the said policy. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee are then put forward for consideration
and adoption where appropriate, by the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely
Dr. Chen Renbao, Mr. Jiang Xiaohui and Mr. Ma Yueyong (as
chairman) as at the date of this report. The principle role and
functions of the Audit Committee are to review and provide
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process,
internal controls and risk management. The Audit Committee
also serves as a channel of communication between the Board
and the external auditor.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
The attendance record of the committee members at these
meetings are set out in the table on page 19 of the annual
report. The work performed by the audit committee during
the Year included reviewing the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014, the unaudited consolidated interim financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2015 and
recommended such financial statements to the Board for
approval and also the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management practices of the Group.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board
that Moore Stephens CPA Limited, be nominated for re-
appointment as auditor of the Company at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.
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The Board has delegated the responsibilities for performing
the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors; to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and
monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees and the
Directors; and to review the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

It also reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing the
corporate governance requirements as set out in the CG Code.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration
paid or payable to the auditor of the Company, Moore
Stephens CPA Limited are set out below:
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HK$'000

21t/

EAER

Services rendered B2 R®E FETT

Audit services EIZRTE 820
Non-audit services I 1% AR 75

(Interim financial review and other services) (hH =N R EMRTE) 330

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the Company’s accounts. The consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015 have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules,
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.622) and other applicable regulatory
requirements.
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TRERBRE

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
other than the situations described in note 3.1 to the
financial statements, the Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may affect
the business of the Company or cast doubts on its ability to
continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor, Moore
Stephens CPA Limited, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 37 to 38.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’
liabilities has been in force to protect the Directors and officers
of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the business
of the Group.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
the Directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. A summary of training records received by the
Directors for the Year is set out as follows:
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TRERBRSE

Attending

conference(s)/

training
course(s)/ Reading
seminars materials and/or
relevant to updates relevant
the business, to the business,

directors’ directors’
duties or listing duties or listing
regulatory regulatory
requirements requirements
HE B
EERBEWR FEEEL-
EHEERE EEHER
ERzEE tHEERE
ZIRE S FRAIMERS
Directors = mag N EH
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Dong Cunling BEFIREAE v v
Mr. Chen Xu BR B % & 7 v
Mr. Wu Jiahong MR HE - v
Mr. Yang Hua HESLE v v
Mr. Zhou Guangwen BAEX LA v/ v
Non-Executive Director FEHMITES
Mr. Li Chunyan FEERE = v
INEDs BUFATES
Dr. Chen Renbao BRCEBH+ v/ v
Mr. Ma Yueyong FRBELYE v v
Mr. Jiang Xiaohui BERELYE - v/

COMPANY SECRETARY

As at 31 December 2015, the Company Secretary of the
Company, Mr. Li Chun On (“Mr. Li"), fulfills the requirement
under Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. He has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr. Li reports to
the Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters. For the Year under review, Mr. Li has
taken over 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s internal
control system and reviewing its effectiveness. However, such
a system is designed to manage the Group’s risks within an
acceptable risk profile, rather than to eliminate the risk of
failure, to achieve the business objectives of the Group. During
the Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
existing system of internal controls with a view to safeguard
the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with shareholders. A shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the Company’s procedure in providing the
shareholders with prompt and equal access to information
about the Company, in order to enable the shareholders to
access the Company’s overall performance, exercise their
rights in an informed manner and engage actively with the
Company. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to shareholders in a timely manner through a number of
formal channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum
for exchange of views between the shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board, the Directors and senior
management of the Company and where applicable, the
INEDs, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors. Details of poll voting procedures are included in all
circulars to shareholders which call for a general meeting and
are explained during proceedings of the meeting.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its shareholders and investors. Information
about the Company’s activities is provided in its interim and
annual reports, which are sent to shareholders, analysts and/
or interested parties. Enquiries from shareholders and investors
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/rrhl,
where extensive information and updates on the Company'’s
business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedure for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders can submit a requisition to convene a special
general meeting pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (the “Act”). The number of shareholders
necessary for a requisition shall be representing not less than
one-tenth of the Company’s paid-up capital as at the date of
requisition having the right to vote at the general meeting.

The written requisition must:
—  state the purposes of the special general meeting;

- be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one
or several documents in like form each singed by one or
more requisitionists); and

—  be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
special general meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, any themselves convene a special general meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.

Procedure for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

Shareholders can submit a requisition to move a resolution at

an annual general meeting pursuant to Section 79 of the Act.

The number of shareholders necessary for a requisition shall
be:

- representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all Shareholders having at the date of
requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or

- not less than 100 shareholders.
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The written requisition must:

—  state the resolution, with a statement not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
the meeting;

—  be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one
or several documents in like form each singed by one or
more requisitionists);

—  be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary not less than
six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one
week before the meeting in case of any other requisition;
and

- be deposited with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in giving notice of the resolution
and circulating the statements of the proposed resolution
to all shareholder in accordance with the requirements
under the applicable laws and rules.

Enquires to the Board

The Company’s website provides email address and telephone
number to enable shareholders to make any enquiries and
concerns to the Board. Shareholders may send their enquiries
by post or by email to the attention of the Company Secretary
who will direct the enquiries to the Board for handling.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are the production and
sale of coal and trading of purchased coal in the PRC.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the Group’s business for the Year is set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on page 6 to page
7 and “Management Discussion and Analysis”on page 8 to
page 13 of this annual report. Principal financial risks and
uncertainties (or contingent liabilities) facing the Group are set
out in Note 37 and Note 41 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at
that date are set out on pages 39 to 148 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the Year.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 and 5 of
this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment are
set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements, during
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had not made
any material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION

Details of the Company’s share capital and share option during
the Year, together with the reasons therefore, are set out in
notes 32 and 33 to the financial statements respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities on the
Stock Exchange during the Year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The sales and purchases of the Group are predominantly in
Renminbi which is the functional currency of the related group
entities. The Board therefore is of the opinion that the Group’s
sensitivity to the change in foreign currency is low and the
Group does not hedge its foreign currency risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has a total of
approximately 2,200 employees located in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Salaries are reviewed annually with discretionary bonuses
being paid depending on individual performance. The Group
also provides other benefits including medical insurance and
pension funds. A share option scheme was adopted by the
Group on 27 May 2014 to enable the Directors to grant share
options to eligible participants including any employee of the
Group as incentive to their valuable contribution to the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in accordance
with the requirements of the CG Code for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process, internal controls and risk management.
The Audit Committee comprises three of the INEDs of the
Company. The members of the Audit Committee have
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and are of the opinion
that such statements comply with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements and those
adequate disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Corporate Governance Report are set out on
pages 17 to 28 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules throughout the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, to the knowledge of the Board, the Group
had complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a material impact on the business of the Group in all material
aspects and there were no circumstances of material breach or
non-compliance of applicable laws and regulations.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2015 was approximately HK$452.3 million (as at 31 December
2014: approximately HK$467.2 million). In addition, the
Company’s share premium account as at 31 December 2015,
in the amount of approximately HK$235.3 million (as at 31
December 2014: approximately HK$235.3 million), can be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the Year under review, the percentage of turnover
attributable to the largest customer and the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 89.2% and 99.0%
respectively. The percentage of purchases attributable to the
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for 98.7% and 99.1% respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Dong Cunling (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Hua (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Wu Jiahong

Mr. Zhou Guangwen

Non-Executive Director:
Mr. Li Chunyan

INEDs:

Dr. Chen Renbao
Mr. Ma Yueyong
Mr. Jiang Xiaohui
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The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from all INEDs and as at the date of this annual
report still considers them to be independent.

In accordance with bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Dong Culing, Mr. Chen Xu and Mr. Chen Renbao will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
reelection at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 14 to 16 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director of the Company being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements, no
director of the Company had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN THE
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures and Ordinance (the “SFO")) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SF0);
or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:
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(a) Long positions in the ordinary shares of the

Company
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(a) RAQFEBRPZHR

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Directors Nature of interest shares shareholdings

R #E

Espns EatE KR&EE BYBEDHK

Mr. Dong Cunling Personal interest 540,000 0.08%
BEFREE (EPN: £

Mr. Yang Hua Personal interest 81,089,196 11.38%
BERE B Az

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFQ); or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange as at 31 December 2015.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERRRAEMALTHEREZRS

PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES s

So far as was known to the Directors or chief executive of the  BEEZXARGITHARKMA R-_T—H
Company, as at 31 December 2015, the person, other than F+ZA=+—8 TIAL (EFHAR
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had an AIFT AR EBR M) RO AR 10 S AR R AR 17 = #
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares as ~ BIREFEH KA E KA FE336KETFTE L
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 ~ EiMATES EEIOAEWT :

of the SFO were as follows:

(a) Long positions in the shares (a) REBHHZFA

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Shareholders Capacity shares shareholdin
B REME 4
BRERE 514 ;&g 4= BAL
(1) Retop International Investment Limited Beneficial Owner 141,400,000 19.84%
(Note 1) EmEA A
WM BBRIEEBR AR (MaET1)
(2) Vestfoco International Investment Limited Interests in controlled 141,400,000 19.84%
("Vestfoco”) (Note 1) corporation
HEBBRIREERAR ([#EE]) S EE s
(KaE1)
(3) Mr. Bao Hongkai (“Mr. Bao") Interests in controlled 141,400,000 19.84%
(Note 1) corporation
Bl Ak ([BEE]) S EEER
(HtaE1)
Beneficial Owner 675,000 0.09%
Em#EAA
(4) Asia Mark Development Limited Beneficial Owner 49,380,000 6.93%
(Note 2) (Kfzt2) Em#EAA
(5)  Mr. Kwong Ying Hou (Note 2) Interests in controlled 49,380,000 6.93%
BRZ &L (HaE2) corporation
XEEBEER
(6) Victory Investment China Group Limited Beneficial Owner 60,000,000 8.42%
(Note 3) (H1zE3) EnlE A
(7)  Dr. Wang Ruiyun (Note 3) Interests in controlled 60,000,000 8.42%
FwEBLT (K7E3) corporation

R AE R

34 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015



Notes:

(1)  Retop International Investment Limited is beneficially and wholly
owned by Vestfoco of which Mr. Bao is the sole beneficial
owner. Accordingly, Vestfoco and Mr. Bao are deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by Retop
International Investment Limited.

(2)  Asia Mark Development Limited is beneficially and wholly
owned by Mr. Kwong Ying Hou. He is independent and not
related to the Board or management of the Company.

(3)  Victory Investment China Group Limited is beneficially and
wholly owned by Dr. Wang Ruiyun. He resigned as a non-
executive director and a co-chairman of the Company in
November 2011.

Save as disclosed above, no persons had an interest or a short
position in the shares and the underlying shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above and note 33 to the financial
statements, at no time during the Year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

PENSION SCHEME AND COSTS

Details of the Group’s pension scheme and the employer’s
pension costs charged to the consolidated income statement
for the Year are set out in notes 3.18 and 11 to the financial
statements, respectively.

In the opinion of the Board, the Group had no significant
obligations for long service payments to its employee pursuant
to the requirements under the Employment Ordinance,
Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong, at 31 December 2015.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
not conducted any “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules) which is subject to reporting and annual
review requirements under the Listing Rules. The transactions
disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements as related party
transactions did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as defined
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Directors are considered to have interest in any business which
is likely to compete directly or indirectly with that of the Group.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to approximately
HK$0.2 million.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the financial statement, the
Group had not any contingent liabilities as at the 31 December
2015.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are disclosed in
note 40 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited resigned as the auditor of the Group with effect
from 21 July 2014. The Board has resolved to appoint Moore
Stephens as new auditor of the Company with effect from
28 July 2014 to fill the casual vacancy occasioned by the
resignation of BDO Limited.

On 1 January 2015, the practice of Moore Stephens was
reorganised as Moore Stephens CPA Limited. The Board has
resolved to approve the resignation of Moore Stephens as
the auditor of the Company and the appointment of Moore
Stephens CPA Limited as the new auditor of the Company with
effect from 19 June 2015.

The financial statements have been audited by Moore
Stephens CPA Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Moore Stephens CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the 2016 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Dong Cunling
Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Rosan Resources Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
39 to 148, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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B & B A RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 3.1
to the consolidated financial statements which indicates that
the Group incurred a consolidated net loss of HK$370,332,000
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and, as of that date,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$421,818,000. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lam Kai Yin
Practising Certificate Number: PO6110

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-HEF —E—F
KtaE FET FAT
Revenue Wz 5 721,810 481,571
Cost of sales SHEMR A (847,278) (527,217)
Gross loss E%| (125,468) (45,646)
Other income H b A 5 82,969 68,776
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HEMAY (9,831) (8,123)
Administrative expenses THHX (63,714) (77,966)
Other expenses H bR (8,461) (11,860)
Finance costs B 75 & FB 7 (48,470) (56,648)
Share of profits of associates JE (B & N Bl 3,836 14,196
Share of profits of a joint venture  JE{5—[E& &1 %% F 47 654
Gain on disposal of an associate ~ H&—MEE AR 2 U 20(b) 25,101 -
Impairment loss on deposits and & & K H fth B UL IE 2 R E
other receivables, net ET1B SRR (10,766) (30,275)
Impairment loss on goodwiill HEREEE 17 - (68,969)
Impairment loss on interest in an A —fEH & A RIS 2 RE
associate 2] 20 - (27,180)
Impairment loss on mining rights  £LiEHE > BEEE 18 (110,298) (67,122)
Impairment loss on property, plant #13 « BiE &84 2 BiEEBE
and equipment 14 (120,054) (67,429)
Loss before income tax MREFBBIAIEE 8 (385,109) (377,592)
Income tax credit TS 9 14,777 3,925
Loss for the year FREE (370,332) (373,667)
Loss for the year attributable to: FE{HFEREE :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIE PN (335,317) (347,332)
Non-controlling interests FEFE HIl 1 RE 25 (35,015) (26,335)
(370,332) (373,667)
Loss per share attributable KAREEABEEBRER
to the owners of the Company
~ Basic and diluted (HK cents) —BERREECEW) 10 (47.051) (48.737)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REEZEHBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # £ —

T-mE+=A=+—HILFEE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-FHEF —F—OF
THET FAT
Loss for the year FREE (370,332) (373,667)
Other comprehensive loss for the FREMEHEERE
year
ltems that will be reclassified HgEBEHHBEBERCIER -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation MEFINETSIE X =58
of foreign operations
— subsidiaries — B A (29,232) (14,515)
— a joint venture ——F'ﬁ/\A = (354) (98)
— associates o AW/NE] (6,056) (1,592)
(35,642) (16,205)
Share of other comprehensive income JE{h—EtS A a] 2 £ 2 EUWA
of an associate 9,364 =
Release of exchange fluctuation & — A EGE 8 X B IRy 13 [ [
reserve upon disposal of an associate & Ehf#HE (940) -
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FANHEM 2 EEE @ FIBRFiIE
net of tax (27,218) (16,205)
Total comprehensive loss for the HFR2HEEEATE
year (397,550) (389,872)
Total comprehensive loss B2 EEEAR
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KAREB A (360,063) (361,518)
Non-controlling interests FEdo 1 RS (37,487) (28,354)
(397,550) (389,872)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B 8RR R

R-_FE—RF+—_A=1+—H

As at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—REF —E—F
Btat FET T IT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment S ER N L] 14 372,942 563,742
Goodwill [EEES 17 - -
Mining rights iR 18 412,362 561,172
Other intangible assets Hithmp&E 19 16 85
Interests in associates RN 20 109,834 108,356
Interest in a joint venture R—EEE R ELR 21 6,317 6,624
Available-for-sale financial assets  AJ{tHES R EE 22 706 26,566
902,177 1,266,545
Current assets REEE
Inventories & 23 5,344 26,959
Accounts and bills receivables FEUBR TN N 224 24 185,358 169,995
Prepayments, deposits and other B FXIE - 124 R E e Uk
receivables HIA 25 147,259 153,251
Tax recoverable EEE e 9,108 9,617
Pledged bank deposits BRI TIER 26(a) 577,751 255,922
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEFEEE 26(b) 541,224 524,835
1,466,044 1,140,579
Current liabilities REaE
Accounts and bills payables FEfSBRR R R IE 27 799,759 390,089
Other payables and accruals H At A~ 5RIE KR FEET B 28 469,213 471,654
Provision for reclamation obligations 2R £ A5 29 93,905 90,983
Bank loans RITER 30 524,985 560,819
1,887,862 1,513,545
Net current liabilities FREEERE (421,818) (372,966)
Total assets less current liabilities AEERAEEE 480,359 893,579
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B B AR R R

As at 31 December 2015 R-=ZF—AF+_-_A=1+—H

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—F-HF —TMOF
k23 FET FET
Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Amount due to an associate e~ — BB 2 A B FIE 20 99,005 99,442
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIEAE 31 3,526 18,759
102,531 118,201
Net assets EEFE 377,828 775,378
EQUITY RARE =
Share capital N 32 71,267 71,267
Reserves f# 34(a) 331,858 691,921
Equity attributable to the RAREE AEMGL 2R
owners of the Company 403,125 763,188
Non-controlling interests FEEHI MRS (25,297) 12,190
Total equity RAEREE 377,828 775,378

The consolidated financial statements on pages 39 to 148 FINFV4SEMSEEMBRREESTERN

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of Z—ZT—XE=ZA=+—A#&ELEZET
directors on 31 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: Z WA TATRERESE :
Dong Cunling E#FIR Yang Hua #B#
Director ZF Director ZF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBE X

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—-FT—AF+-_H=+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

LN PN
Capital Statutory
Share Share  redemption Other  Contributed ~ Exchange Capital reserve Non-
Share  premium* option reseve*  resene*  suplus®  fluctuation  resenve* fund*  Accumulated controlling

capital  (Note 34(3)  reserve*  (Note 34@)  (Note34a) (Note34a)  resenve*  (Note 34(a)  (Note 34(a)) [osses* Total  interests Total
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
v
fipiaE BiRE BEGE- AbRE SARR EX AXRE EELEL
A (HitsHe) B (Bde) (Witsd) (Witsde) RESE (Witde) (WiHe) EBigr @t FERER &3t
Tér  TEr  TEn Tér TEr  TEr  TEr  Tén Tér TEr TEr  TEr  Tén

At1 January 2014 RZZ-BE-f-H 71267 235334 2,106 50 72957 4863

7 19,759 2442 13449 (102,018) 1,124,706 40,539 1,165,245

Lapse of share option BREXH = - (208 = - - - - - 2,106 - - -
Transfer from contributed suplus 4 A BHEEE

to accumulated losses of the ~~ AAFIZHER

Company (note 34(8)) (Frst34(e) - - - - - (18433) = - - 18433 - - -

Transactions with owners BREEAIRS - - (2,106) - - (18433 - - - 20,539 - - -

Non-controlling interest arising (R~ BAREE

from incorporation of a subsidiary 2 FE2REZR = = - - - - - - - - - > 5
Loss for the year FRER = - - - - - - - - (34733) (34733) (26335 (373,667)
Other comprehensive loss for the  ERE 2 EER

year

- Bxchange differences on ~ — 8B EHAE
translation of financial Br/ERER

statements of foreign
operations
- subsidiaries -KEaw - - - - - - (12,666) = = - (12,666) (1,849 (14515)
- joint venture ——AELE - - - - - - (88) - - - (88) (10) (98)
- associates -BEAR = = = = = - (1432 = = - (1432 (160)  (1.592)
Total comprehensive loss for the ~ £R2ABELE
year - - - - - - (14,186) - - (34733) (361518)  (28354) (389,872
Transfer from other reserve REMEEER - - - - (8,800) - - - - 8,800 - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME
+-A=1-H 71,267 235334 - 50 64,157 467,884 182573 7442 134492 (420011) 763,188 12,190 775378
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBE X

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z_—FT—AF T -H=1T—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

BATREAELR
Capital Statutory
Share  redemption Other Contributed  Exchange Capital reserve Non-
Share  premium*  reserve*  reseve*  surplus*  fluctuation  reserve* fund*  Accumulated controlling

capital ~ (Note 343)  (Note 34a)  (Note34a)  (Mote34a)  reserve*  (Note 34(a)  (Note 34(3)) losses* Total  interests Total
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

Hfbfier  SARR: B EARE fEORE
34E) (W) RBEE He)  BitER 4t FERER it
S B v A v 7 v 7 v 7 v 7 v 7 A -

B
TR

At 1 January 2015 R=%-1%-A-A 267 235334 50 64157 467,884 182,573 48 13449 (420011) 763,188 1219 7753718

Los for the yer FAEA - - - - - - - S5 ) I 517 N 1 N3 )
Other comprehensive loss for the year  £REM2EEE
- Exchange differences on translation — #AE i/ £7£817%
of financial statements of foreign ~~ HXZE}ER

operations
- subsidiaries -7 - - - - - (26557) - - - (26557 (615 (9.232)
- a joint venture -—BAERE - - - - - (319) - - - (319) (35) (354)
-~ associates -BERT - - - - - (5.451) - - - (5451) (605)  (6,056)
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve (1 E—FEBE A TE B
upon disposal of an associate REXRIRE - - - - - (846) - - - (846) (%) (940)
Share of other comprehensive income of fE(E—FIB& AR 2 £
an associate HEERA - - - 8,427 - - - - - 8,427 937 9,364
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ £N2EEELE - - - 8,427 - (331n) - - (335317)  (360,063)  (37.487) (397,550
Transfer from other reserve R RER - - - (17,197) - - - - 17,197 - - -
At 31 December 2015 R=%-E§+=R
=t-A 71,267 235,334 50 55,387 467,884 149,400 27,48 134492 (738,131) 403,125 (25297) 377,828

% The aggregate amount of these balances of approximately & 2 E K 2 #B B8 #9331,900,000% 7T (=
HK$331.9 million (2014: approximately HK$691.9 million) T — P4 1 49691,900,000/8 7T ) B4R A B
represents the reserves in the consolidated statement of AR K AR 2 -
financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF —TlF
ftat BT FHT
Cash flows from operating activities = KEEEZHERE
Loss before income tax BRATS B AT B 1R (385,109) (377,592)
Adjustments for: HEIRE ¢
Share of profits of associates EIGEE & A AR T (3.836) (14,196)
Share of profits of a joint venture Elh—BEE R (47) (654)
Finance costs MBER 7 42,366 44,335
Amortisation of mining rights B iH IR 8 9,047 8,675
Amortisation of other intangible assets BEHMELEE 8 69 51
Write-down of inventories FEMR 23 750 -
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 8 - 68,969
Impairment loss on prepayments, BNFIE - Re Rk
deposits and other receivables Hi W IE RERE 25 16,675 31,536
Impairment loss on interest in an N NI Sy
associate HEEE 8 - 27,180
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - BB REREZREE
equipment 1B 8 120,054 67,429
Impairment loss on mining rights RIERREEE 8 110,298 67,122
Impairment loss on accounts FEW AR FRORE B 1R
receivable 8 1,792 2,199
Interest income FEWA 5 (33,496) (21,951)
Depreciation e 8 14 45,392 45,927
Gain on disposals of property, plant HEWE BER&EZ
and equipment Wz 5, 8 (175) (100)
Gain on disposals of an associate HE—HEBE ARz KE  200b) (25,101) -
Provision for reclamation obligations FZRE BEE 29 8,077 7,743
Reversal of provision for impairment BREBENEMNTIE REk
on prepayments, deposit and other H A FEM IR < BB
receivables 25 (5,909) (1,261)
Reversal of provision for central BER IR ReETE 2 B
pension scheme 5 (46,684) (46,145)
Operating loss before working capital LEECBHAISEERE
changes (145,837) (90,733)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD/($m) 19,462 (13,402)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts and bills  FEUBRESR R =45 (38:40),/ 7 4
receivables (26,119) 121,227
Increase in prepayments, deposits and ANFIR e REMmEK
other receivables IR (1,467) (23,169)
Increase in accounts and bills payables FET BRI KR ZEHE LN 430,402 93,471
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and — EfthfE ZI8 & fExT & F
accruals B0 CRid) 78,207 (33,461)
Payments for reclamation obligations BENFREER - (635)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-EfF —E—mE
ftat TER FHT
Cash generated from operations LSRR S 354,648 53,298
Interest received B H B 5 33,496 21,951
Interest paid BAFE 7 (42,366) (44,335)
Income tax paid B FEN (45) (42)
Net cash generated from operating IS
activities ReFeE 345,733 30,872
Cash flows from investing activities REXBZHAESHE
Purchases of property, plant and BEME BERRZE
equipment 14 (3,090) (160,898)
Purchases of other intangible assets BEHMBEVEE 19 - (136)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE  BE KEEFE
plant and equipment PIA - 609
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- HEMHLESRHEEMS
sale financial assets A 15,539 =
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — & A R FTS 58 14,289 -
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and BAFIE e REMmEK
other receivables RIERD - 7,379
Increase in pledged bank deposits B RITE L (335,430) (133,634)
Decrease in outstanding receivables on HE—MEEEREMNEK
disposal of a joint venture RRFOR A - 37,839
Dividends received from an associate RE—FH#ERRLZRE - 2,882
Net cash used in investing activities REEEMAR 2 FHE (308,692) (245,959)
Cash flows from financing activities MEXBZRERE
New bank loans IGIRITER 844,754 1,027,572
Repayments of bank loans EBFTER (851,032) (920,400)
Increase in amount due to an associate & {<f — Fej Bt i /8 B SRIESE 0 7,759 61,621
Net cash generated from financing BMEEEMERS
activities HEE 1,481 168,793
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBRELEEBAFHEE
cash equivalents m/ (R4 38,522 (46,294)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—AzBR&EBEL%E
HE 524,835 580,835
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GNGE P R B8 v 2/ 28 (22,133) (9,706)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 R+-A=+—-HZEER
December HEZEIER 541,224 524,835
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ 3% BT A

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
The Company’s shares are listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the production and sale
of coal and the trading of purchased coal in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"”). The principal activities
and other particulars of its subsidiaries are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 were approved for issue by the board
of directors of the Company on 31 March 2016.

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs effective
from 1 January 2015

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 are consistent with those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014, except that the Group
has applied the following revised standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") which are first effective for
the current financial year.

HKAS 19 (2011)
Amendments

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012
Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011 - 2013
Cycle

The adoption of the above revised standards has
no significant financial effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

—REF
BEERZERERAR(ART DA
FRREIMRI 2 EBR DA - HiF
i % = & £z ¥ Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda > &N A BRI M BB A R
SEERAR ([BRAT])ER M-

AR REMBAR(AEE]) 2x
REBRETEARKMBE(+HE )
HERBEERRALBARRKE
HfB AR EEXHREMFRH
KRB M H R RES -

HE_ZT—RAF+_A=+—HLF
BZRARERRERATNEETERN
—E—RF=A=1+—HH#ETE-

RANHET RIET BRI BR

LA B

H ==
(a) KMWR=-Z=—HE—-—A—B&E
B2 HET/RRIET BB BR

LEXER|

WEBE_T-—RFt+_-A
=t HUEFENGEMBREK
RERMNEASTRRERE -
Z-—OFE+-A=+—HILEEE
HARE M SRR P ATERAE —
B EAREERAE LS
AE([HAEEAE ) B
RERMERFEBERERHIAT
RAEETZER

BRGENZIE  AERiEE: BEHR
(ZF——F)(ETA)

FRUREERY  FAMBESEN-T-
(B31%) FEE_E-—4EY
LEEHE
FRMBEEEN  FAMBESEN-F
(:1%) 5248

B ERME

R _ B B RT RIS R & B 15
BRUESAPHEEE

REERIERAR AR 2015FF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% 3% BT A

For the year ended 31

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs effective
from 1 January 2015 (continued)

In addition, the Company has adopted the
amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) relating to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current
financial year. The main impact to the consolidated
financial statements is on the presentation and
disclosure of certain information in the consolidated
financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs, which have been issued but
are not yet effective, in the consolidated financial
statements:

December 2015 #HE_-—FE—AF+_-_HA=1+—"HILFE

RINHRET RRIEFT BB BB

HER (E)

H =
(a) HKMWR=—F—HF—A—B%

2]/ RIETERYBR
HER(E)

A=A

5N + AN BB A B R FE AR
B % LT ARR( LR
B J) R 2 B8 i 2 A (5
622% ) FiE 7 AT B 1 15 A 1
MiEE REEY BHEANBR
FRETARNS RIS -

(b) EEMERERERZHETRE
B ERMERERER
AEEW RNERA M BRI ER
THIE B E R ARERZFE] R
RIEFTBBM B HmE 2R :

Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after
ARG F R RS A
ZIBER

HKAS 1 Amendments

EE G EANFE R (BRTA) RETFE

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Amendments

Disclosure Initiatives

Clarification of Acceptable

1 January 2016
—ET-RF—H—H

1 January 2016

Methods of Depreciation and

Amortisation

RS EAE 16 RE B G ER
£385 (BRI A)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Amendments

B ELE 165 BB G EL]
EPALACCHIES)

HKAS 27 (2011) Amendments

BB EEBEH (=T ——F)
CHES)

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

BE - AHEY

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

B ISR 2 etk

BBITE M 2 PR R A —ZT—R"¥—H—H

1 January 2016
AN =

1 January 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS 2.

(continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs that have been

RINHRET RRIEFT BB BB

HER(E)

H=T=A

(b) CHEMERERERZHETRE

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

BRI BB BHREERN(E)

Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after
TR IAF S $ s HARE =X
ZBER

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
Amendments

EREYMBHRELENE10RLE LGS
ERFE285R (- T ——F)({EF]A)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011) Amendments

BBVEHRELRF 105 BB
WELENFE 12 RBEBSFERE
285k (=T ——F )(IEETA)

HKFRS 11 Amendments

BBV BMELERFE11RUEETIA)

HKFRS 14%*
AR REREAE 1457~

Amendments to HKFRSs

ERMBRELEN(ERTA)

HKFRS 9
BB R EERFINR
HKFRS 15

BRMBRELERNE 1557

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

JEEREBENRNE E D ER
ZEBEEHESER

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

BREERE  BRKE ZHIIMER

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Wi KRG @t BRI

Regulatory Deferral Accounts
EERLERP

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012 — 2014 Cycle

EEVBRELERN _T——F5—
T-MFERPZ FEBE

Financial Instruments
SRITE

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

EFaRZ K

REERIER AR AR

To be determined*

FEE*

1 January 2016

1 January 2016
—E—RF—H—H

1 January 2016

1 January 2018
—E-N\F—H—H

1 January 2018

—F-)\#—A—H

2015544
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS

(continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

* On 6 January 2016, the HKICPA issued "Effective
Date of Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28",
following the International Accounting Standards
Board’s equivalent amendments. This update defers/
removes the effective date of the amendments in
“Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
or its Associate or Joint Venture” that the HKICPA
issued on 7 October 2014. Early application of these
amendments continues to be permitted.

**  HKFRS 14 applies to first annual HKFRS financial
statements for a period beginning on or after 1
January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the
Group.

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the related impact of adopting the above new
and revised HKFRSs. So far, it has concluded that
the above new and revised HKFRSs will be adopted
at the respective effective dates and the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group
except for the following:

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of
the financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39
and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018. The Group expects that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on the classification
and measurement of the Group's financial assets.
Further information about the impact will be
available nearer the implementation date of the
standard.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

RINHRET RRIEFT BB BB
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS 2. BRENEET RBETEBBMIER
(continued) HEHER| (&)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs that have been (b) EHEMEERERZHETRE

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that
will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. In September 2015,
the HKICPA issued an amendment to HKFRS 15
regarding a one-year deferral of the mandatory
effective date of HKFRS 15 to 1 January 2018. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January
2018 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS
15 upon adoption.

BT EBMBHREER(E)
BEMBHREERFI5H[F
F&ERZ WKz
BAMBHRELAE155ET
—EFHRTENX - BERARE
FaRzWE - REEBIER
EFERFE155 - W iRRE R E
BEMARBRAEFEREL
RIETHAEEFSHKESERE
R BB B MEERF155RH
[RENAETE KRR
RERBE T - R ERI TR E| A&
RHNEEREERERE B
DA BREITEE
TRBRZANEERAERE
RESRR B B DA N 3 B AT N b5
MER - R-_ZT—HFIA &
BRI AEROE BN ERE
BRIFI5HRZERTA - (5HB A
75 5 & 24E Bl S5 1558 2 58 I £ R
BRES—FE2 - \F—H
—H-AKEEAEHMR_FT—N\F
—A—ARMRF B EHREER
£155 BRI ERTARAE AR
BREERF ISR E -

REERIERAR AR 2015FF
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE=—FT—AF+-_H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements on pages
39 to 148 have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except where otherwise indicated.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 2.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on managements best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESHHFEME s
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 3.1 RBEEE)
Going concern basis FERERE

The Group incurred a consolidated net loss of
approximately HK$370,332,000 (2014: approximately
HK$373,667,000) for the year ended 31 December
2015 and, as of that date, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$421,818,000 (2014:
approximately HK$372,966,000). These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that
may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore it may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business.

In order to improve the Group’s financial positions,
liquidity and cash flows, the directors of the
Company have adopted or in the process of
adopting the following measures:

(@) The Group has been taking stringent cost
controls in different areas, such as in the cost
of sales and administrative expenses;

(b) The Group has entered into a framework
agreement with a bank in the PRC. According
to the framework agreement, the bank has
agreed to renew the current banking facility
to the Group with amount of RMB90,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$107,433,000)
upon its expiry. Besides, the bank has
preliminarily agreed to offer the Group for an
additional banking facility for an amount of
RMB400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$477,480,000) when it is required by the
Group in the next two years from March 2015.
The bank has the final and conclusive right to
determine the grant of such facility; and

() The Group from time to time reviews its
investment projects and may adjust the
investment strategies in order to enhance the
cash flow position of the Group whenever it is
necessary.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

Taking into account of the above measures and
after assessing the Group's current and future
cash flow positions, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
their financial obligations when they fall due.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business
as a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to write down the value of assets to
their estimated recoverable amounts, to reclassify
non-current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities respectively, and to provide for any
further liabilities which may arise. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

3.

FESHERBE &

3.1 RBEEE(E)
H R B EARR T G AER
WAERARBEREMRRE K

3.2

AREFHREAEEREENE
TTHEHMBRE Btk AR
RESRA BEEKLEEER
HERAMBHRRBEE -

WAKRBEEIFEREEE A
BIFELRBIAKEEEBERRE
ERTAIRE S5 KERBEE
RBBOREMDBERREBDEE
REE IR ARAIGEEEZIE
MBErELRE - ARAR Y
EIWENERE P IEIwR R

mEEXE
SERAMBRREBARR R
HMBARIZHE_T—AF
TZA=+t—REFEMBER
& o MIB R R AR B Z 5
RBRA—HEH KA—GF
BE -MBARMEESAEHE
RSEGIEBE MRS o &S
EHEERILEFIEH-

B R EMEE R ASHEKE D
FRRARBIEA A SRR
Rk AN e & S B EL SRR Il
REEHRTR T - FTASERER
5 R WARERBRES
P 2R -



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

3.3

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of
control, is accounted for an equity transaction.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in the Group losing
control over a subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any investment retained and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to income
statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Business combination and goodw

T RF+-AS+—HIFE

TESTHTBRBE &

ill 3.3 ¥BE/HREE(E)

(continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting
gain or loss is recongised in consolidated income
statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in consolidated
income statement. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in consolidated income statement as a
bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Business combination and goodwill

TESTRRBEE

33 EBEHREE(E)

(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units. Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units
(or group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and then to the other assets of the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units), the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

o the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, which is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decision of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

Investment in associates or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, less any
impairment losses, unless it is classified as held
for sale. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investees’ identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investees net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
investment in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group’s interest is reduced to zero and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associates or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in consolidated income
statement. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint venture is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates or joint venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa,
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, when the
Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in consolidated income statement. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When investment in associates or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is also the
functional currency of the Company and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in consolidated income
statement. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined and are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured at historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3.

POLICIES (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

T RF+-AS+—HIFE

TESTHRBEE

3.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group's presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and liabilities
have been translated into HK$ at the closing rate
at the reporting date. Income and expenses have
been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average
rates over the reporting period, provided that
the exchange rate do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange fluctuation reserve in equity. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in exchange fluctuation reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into HK$ at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale
of goods, net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised as follows:

—  Revenue from sale of coal, ancillary materials
and consumable tools and trading of
purchased coal are recognised upon transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the customers. This is usually taken as the time
when goods are delivered and customer has
accepted the goods.

- Interest income is accrued on time-proportion
basis on the principal outstanding using
effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Intangible assets (other than goodwill and

mining rights)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised
initially at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives of two years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent impairment
losses. Intangible assets are tested for impairment
as described below in note 3.12. Amortisation
commences when intangible assets are available for
use.

3.10 Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any identified impairment losses
and are amortised using units-of-production method
over the proved and probable reserves of the coal
mines.

3.11 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and
other items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress (“CIP"), are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to the working condition and location for
its intended use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

TESTRRBEE

3. 1M W¥E - -BERREE)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:

Buildings and mining The shorter of the lease
structures terms and 5% per
annum
Plant and machineries 4% to 33% per annum
Mining related 10% to 20% per annum
machinery and
equipment
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 20% per annum
equipment
Leasehold improvement  The shorter of the lease
terms and 10% to
20% per annum

Motor vehicles 10% to 25% per annum

The asset’s estimated residual value, depreciation
method and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs
and maintenance are charged to consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

CIP, which mainly represents construction on
buildings and mining structures, is stated at cost
less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct
costs incurred during the periods of construction,
installation and testing. No depreciation is provided
on CIP. CIP is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when the
construction is completed and the asset is ready for
use.
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B 7% ¥ 5% BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # £ —

F—ngt A= —AIEEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEFEHBE &
POLICIES (continued)
3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets .12 FeREEZRE
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting EEREREHRESTHES
period as to whether there is an indication that PR R KA 2 AIHERR 2 R B & 18 A]

previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life or those not yet available for
use are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the
assets carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment,
where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent from those of other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflow
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit (“CGU")).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at CGU level.
Goodwill in particular is allocated to those CGUs
that are expected to benefit from synergies of the
related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purpose.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TE@3HEHMEs
POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

BNFEMEEZREE)

(continued)

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially
to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other
assets in the CGUs, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost of disposal, or value-in-use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

3.13 Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to the consolidated income
statement in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in
the consolidated income statement as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals, if any, are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # £ —

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases of financial assets are recognised on
trade date. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred. At each reporting date, financial assets
are reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists,
impairment loss is determined and recognised based
on the classification of the financial asset.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling in the near term, or it is
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-
taking. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

When a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TE3HEME4%)
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)

314 EREE(E)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in consolidated income statement. Fair value
is determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique where
no active market exists. Fair value gain or loss does
not include any dividend or interest earned on these
financial assets. Interest income earned on the
financial assets is recognised in consolidated income
statement in accordance with the policies set out in
note 3.7.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. These are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method, less any impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses.
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For the year ended 31

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- It becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— A significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
Group and, national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets in the
Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the assets
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial assets original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The
amount of loss is recognised in consolidated
income statement of the period in which the
impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent that
it does not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset exceeding what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment
is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in consolidated income statement
of the period in which the reversal occurs.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale equity investment that
is carried at cost, the amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss is not reversed.
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For the year ended 31

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Inventories comprise coal, spare
parts and consumable store for trading and own
consumption purposes. Costs of coal is determined
using weighted average basis whereas costs of spare
parts and consumables are stated at first-in first-
out or weighted average basis as appropriate, and
in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprise direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TE@3HEHMEs
POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Income taxes

3.16 Fri8%K

Income tax represents the sum of current and
deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:—

e when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

3.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term highly
liguid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

3.18 Employee benefits
Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the PRC are required to participate
in the central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme as specified by
the local municipal government. The contributions
are charged to the consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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For the year ended 31

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees and its directors.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in consolidated income statement with
a corresponding credit to share option reserve. If
vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply,
the expense is allocated over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number
of share options expected to vest. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there
is any indication that the number of share options
expected to vest differs from previous estimates. No
adjustment to expense recognised in prior periods is
made if fewer share options ultimately are exercised
than originally vested.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs up to the nominal value of the share issued
are reallocated to share capital with any excess
being recorded as share premium. When the vested
share options are lapsed, forfeited or still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained
profits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TE@3HEHMEs
POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Financial liabilities

3.19 £ AE

The Group's financial liabilities include bank loans,
accounts and bills payables, other payables and
accruals and amount due to an associate.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Borrowings

Borrowings, which include bank loans, are
recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date.

Accounts and bills payables/other payables
and accruals/amount due to an associate

These are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are those contracts that require a payment to
be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the financial
guarantee contract, except when such a contract is
recognised at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of each reporting period; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TE@3HEHMEs
POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Segment reporting 3.21 A HwE

The Group identifies operating segment and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group's major product and service
lines.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its consolidated financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs.

3.22 Provision for reclamation obligations

The Group is required to make payments for
reclamation of the land after the underground
sites have been mined. Provision for reclamation
obligation is required when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of past event, and it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle
that obligation. Provisions are measured at the
directors best estimation of the expenditure required
to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period, and are discounted to present value where
the effect is material.
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For the year ended 31

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group's
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far
as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised are (the "fair value
hierarchy”):

Level 1:  Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

Level 2:  Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels
is based on the lowest level of the inputs used
that has a significant effect on the fair value
measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.

The Group measures the CGU of production and
sale of coal impairment at fair value.

For more detailed information in relation to the fair
value measurement of the items above, please refer
to the applicable notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # £ —

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Related parties

(a)

or

A person or a close member of that persons
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vij The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
group or to the group’s parent.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Depreciation

Other than CIP, the Group depreciates
property, plant and equipment on straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives ranging
between 3 to 25 years, starting from the date
on which the assets are ready for productive
use. The estimated useful lives reflect the
directors estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment. The carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2015 was approximately HK$372.9
million (2014: approximately HK$563.7
million). Further details are disclosed in note
14.

Amortisation of mining rights

The Group amortises its mining rights on a
units-of-production method, utilising only
proved and probable coal reserves as the
depletion base. The estimated coal reserves
reflect the directors estimation on the Group’s
intention to derive future economic benefits
from the mining rights. Accounting policy
on mining rights is set out in note 3.10. The
carrying amount of mining rights as at 31
December 2015 was approximately HK$412.4
million (2014: approximately HK$561.2
million). Further details are disclosed in note
18.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(iii) Impairment of deposits paid and

receivables

The Group’s management determines
impairment of deposits paid and receivables
on a regular basis. This estimate is based on
credit history of its counter parties and current
market conditions. Management reassesses the
impairment of deposits paid and receivables at
the reporting date.

The Group's management reviews deposits
paid and receivables on a regular basis to
determine if any provision for impairment is
necessary. The impairment loss on deposits
paid and receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivables, to receive
the services, products or acquire the business
operations according to the original terms
of contracts. Significant financial difficulties
of the counter parties, probability that the
counter parties will enter into bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the deposit/receivable is
impaired. The impairment loss of deposits
paid and receivables provided during the year
ended 31 December 2015 was approximately
HK$16.7 million (2014: approximately
HK$31.5 million). Further details are disclosed
in note 25.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(iv) Net realisable value of inventories

(v)

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of selling products of
similar nature. It could change significantly as
a result of competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management reassesses
the estimations at the reporting date. The
carrying amount of inventories as at 31
December 2015 was approximately HK$5.3
million (2014: approximately HK$27.0 million).
Further details are disclosed in note 23.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in
determining whether an asset is impaired
or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in
assessing: (i)whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (ii) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset
or derecognition; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the
level of impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment
test.

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$120.1 million
(2014: HK$67.4 million) was recognised by the
Group and details of this impairment are set in
note 14.
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For the year ended 31

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(v)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Mining rights are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. The carrying
amount is reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the carrying amount
of mining rights exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of the fair value of mining rights less
costs to sell and value-in-use. In estimating
the recoverable amount of mining rights,
various assumptions, including the Group
having uninterrupted rights to operate the
coal mines owned by the Group, are made.
If future events do not correspond to such
assumptions, the recoverable amount will need
to be revised, and this may have an impact on
the Group's results of operations and financial
positions.

During the year ended 31 December
2015, impairment loss on mining rights
of approximately HK$110.3 million (2014:
HK$67.1 million) was recognised by the Group
and details of this impairment are set out in
note 18.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Provision for reclamation obligations

The provision is reviewed regularly to verify
that it properly reflects the remaining
obligation arising from current and past
mining activities. Provision for land reclamation
is determined by management based on
their best estimates of the current and future
costs, latest government policies and past
experiences. The carrying amount of provision
for reclamation obligations as at 31 December
2015 was approximately HK$93.9 million
(2014: approximately HK$91.0 million). Further
details are disclosed in note 29.

Central pension scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in PRC are
required to contribute certain percentage on
their payroll costs for employees to the central
pension scheme. However, the implementation
and settlement of the contribution to
the central pension scheme varies among
various Social Security Bureaus in cities of
the PRC, and the Group has not finalised its
contribution calculation and payments with
the local Social Security Bureau in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the contribution.
The Group recognised the contribution based
on managements best estimates according to
the understanding of the rules of the central
pension scheme.

4. EXRGHERAEE
4.1 EXREERRER(E)

(vi) BHEE R

MERERARESTEHET
RE - AR E KRGS RERIR
BERBERFEEHELZ
RN AEE (T - T3 AR
HHEEEZB A RARK
AR ~ B3l BRBUR BRUR & i
B e xEMTME
SR FE—RF+ A
=t+—8 HAZRBREEEZ
R H (B 4J £93,900,000/%
T(Z 2 — W F: 4
91,000,000 70 ) # — &
I ERHIFE29 ©

(vii) P RE Ik E 51 &

AEBEETRHE NS
NAAEEEFMNET
B2 R T RIR RS 5 E
K R RPBEEHZ
B+t & (R ERPI A AR R
REFEETREEHR
RIERE - RAKBERAZ
BRI ERA AL
SREMPIEL TR E
It EEHRESRAELE
KA - ARERIEEEE
M) B G ET R P RARAK
& &t 81 Bl e 72 R A SR AR
LR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2 Critical judgement in applying the entity’s

accounting policies

Deferred tax

The Group is in the progress of application for
claiming the fair value of its mining right of
Xiangyang Coal Industry Company Limited*
("Xiangyang”) (B mRBEXERAF) as
its qualifying assets from the relevant PRC local
tax authorities to benefit from the tax deduction
allowance. Significant judgement is required in
determining the likely outcome of the application
and the amount of deferred tax. The Group
recognises deferred tax based on estimates of
temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets in the
consolidated financial statements and their
respective tax bases. If the final outcome of this
matter is different from the estimation, it will impact
the income tax and deferred tax in the periods in
which such determination is concluded.

* For identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents the income arising from the Group’s
principal activities which are the production and sale of
coal and the trading of purchased coal.

Revenue and other income recognised during the year are
as follows:

5.

W 2 K2 E U A

WaEASE T 2R (AR R EE
RHEARBARRKE S )EL 2K
A°

FRMER 2 Wt REMKALT

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—FHE —EF
FHExT AT
Revenue g
Production and sale of coal BiREERIEE 156,764 151,399
Trading of purchased coal BEAEKRES 565,046 330,172
721,810 481,571
Other income Hag A
Bank interest income RITH B UA 33,496 21,951
Sale of ancillary materials SRR E 264 -
Service income i8N - 40
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE BMENREZ
equipment e 175 100
Reversal of provision for central pension  #E]FH R K & 512 B
scheme 46,684 46,145
Others HAb 2,350 540
82,969 68,776
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # £ —

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive
directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”)
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the Executive Directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that
is engaged in business activities from which the Group
may earn revenue and incur expenses, and is identified
on the basis of the internal management reporting
information that is provided to and regularly reviewed
by the Executive Directors in order to allocate resources
and assess performance of the segment. For the years
presented, the Executive Directors have determined that
the Group has only one operating segment as the Group
is principally engaged in the business of production and
sale of coal and the trading of purchased coal which is
the basis to allocate resources and assess performance.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers is all
derived from the PRC and most of its non-current assets
are located in the PRC. The Company is an investment
holding company incorporated in Bermuda where the
Group does not have any activities. The Group has the
majority of its operations and workforce in the PRC, and
therefore, the PRC is considered as the Group's country
of domicile for the purpose of disclosures as required by
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments.

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
were delivered. The geographical location of the non-
current assets is based on the location of asset.

Information on major customers

During the year ended 31 December 2015, approximately
HK$643.6 million or 89.2% (2014: approximately
HK$377.6 million or 78.4%) and approximately HK$28.1
million or 3.9% (2014: approximately HK$52.0 million
or 10.8%) of the Group's revenue were derived from
Customer A and Customer B respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

FINANCE COSTS 7. MBEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-fF —FE
TER THT
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: HBERZAWWT -
Interest on bank loans FITEFHHE 42,366 44,335
Bank charges on bills receivable discounted without i RiE D BE R NS 1%
recourse ZBITHE 6,104 14,604
48,470 58,939
Less: Interest capitalised* W BEMEZFE* - (2,291)
48,470 56,648
*  The borrowing cost was capitalised at 6.69% per annum *  BEZE-NE+-A=+—AH1E
for the year ended 31 December 2014. FE - BERARTIEE.69% 2 F A=
FLAE AL
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. KRFTBHAIEE

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

BRPTSBATEIRE HkR,(GEA):

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-IF —F-mF
TET THER
Cost of inventories sold BEHEREKA 752,385 522,995
Auditor's remuneration** SR &+ 1,150 1,183
Depreciation* (note 14) TE*(Hist14) 45,392 45,927
Minimum lease payments under operating leases on  GE+i  BFERBAETREL
land, buildings and office equipment** CERERETREREMT 2,677 3,674
Amortisation of mining rights** (note 18) IR i (Mit18) 9,047 8,675
Amortisation of other intangible assets** (note 19) EtbER EERH** (Hf£19) 69 51
Employee benefit expense (including compensation of (B E&FIF X (EETEEEASR
key management personnel) (note 11) S (Hat11) 165,498 116,167
Exchange loss, net** B LB F R 56 909
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment  HEWE « BE &R 2 Uies (175) (100)
Impairment loss on accounts receivable** (note 24)  FEMEBRIR 2 R EESE** (fi£24) 1,792 2,199
Impairment loss on deposits and other receivables, &4 K E UK FIE 2 FiEEE
net** (note 25) RER** (Hf7E25) 10,766 30,275
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 17) BB REBERT7) - 68,969
Impairment loss on interest in an associate (note 20) W —RE& N Rl 2 HEFRE
(HfzE20) - 27,180
Impairment loss on mining rights (note 18) REEZREBE(ME18) 110,298 67,122
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment — #1%  BE k& EZREER
(note 14) (Kiat14) 120,054 67,429
Provision for reclamation obligations REEBRE(f1729)
(note 29) 8,077 7,743

REERIER AR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (continued) 8.

* Depreciation of approximately HK$41.0 million (2014:
approximately HK$40.6 million) has been included in cost of
sales and approximately HK$4.4 million (2014: approximately
HK$5.3 million) has been included in administrative expenses
in the consolidated income statement.

** Included in administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

9. INCOME TAX CREDIT 9.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for the year
in the consolidated financial statements as the Group has
tax losses brought forward from previous years (2014: Nil).

Corporate income tax arising from operations in the PRC is
calculated at the statutory income tax rate of 25% (2014:
25%) of the estimated assessable profits as determined
in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations in the PRC.

BRATSBAIE R (&

& #941,000,000/87C ( ZZ—PO4F : 4
40,600,00087C ) 2 FTEEFTAHE
Bk AN & 494,400,000/ 7T (= Z — 0
F : 495,300,000 7T) B 5t A& A
WERRITHRAS A -

o BHABAKBRETHELA.

FrEBiiER
ENAEEA AU FEEE 2R
EiE MFE AL EL BB MEHRER
EMBRERELBE(ZT—HF:
o

RER AR ERR A RBG - P
Bl R 2 DEMERIRGE
BB ZATEMEHBE25% (=
T—PO4E : 25% )5t E o

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-I1F —FTmE
FERT FAT

Current tax - PRC income tax BIEAS I — B AT
— Current year —RFE - 72
— Under-provision in respect of prior year —@FFEEETE 45 -
45 72

Deferred tax credit EEHIEEK S

— Current year (note 31) —RNEFE(HaE31) (14,822) (3,997)
(14,777) (3,925)

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 9. FSBiER (&)
A reconciliation between income tax credit to loss before Fr 1S B 4K S B2 Bk PR 1S 75 A E5 1R 128 A
income tax at applicable tax rates is as follows: BEZEERMT -
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-FHEF —E—pF
FHET FAT
Loss before income tax BREFS LRI E R (385,109) (377,592)
Tax on loss before income tax, LIRS e AERERR
calculated at the applicable rates K E B RS AE
in the tax jurisdictions concerned B2 Hi1E (94,220) (73,426)
Tax effect of non-taxable income ARG A Z IR E (22,122) (20,157)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR 2 RIBR & 75,601 77,093
Tax losses not recognised RERBIIEE R 25,962 12,718
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax BB KRR IEE B
losses (43) (153)
Under-provision in respect of prior year @ FEEEETE 45 -
Income tax credit FTisBiE L (14,777) (3,925)
The share of income tax expense attributable to a joint —HMEErEREAEHREIAE
venture amounting to Nil (2014: HK$1,013) is included (ZZE—F :1,0138 L) B st ALR
in share of profits of a joint venture in the consolidated alEkRZ [EBH—HEe&ERERT

income statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

10. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE 10. XAFEBEANEEBRER

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

ARFEBAREZERERR#E
BRTIRIA T BB E

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-RF —T—mEF

FET FAT
Loss for the year attributable to the owners ARt & GARE A K& i
of the Company for the purpose of basic ~ SEEEBZ AXATES

and diluted loss per share computation ANEIEFAEIR (335,317) (347,332)

2015 2014

Number of Number of

Shares shares

‘000 ‘000

—E-51% —F-mF

% & B &mEE

F] &
Weighted average number of ordinary FAAGTE BB A &8
shares in issue for the purpose of basic EEEZEBITER

and diluted loss per share computation % hn#E 15 25 712,674 712,674

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and
therefore, the amount of diluted loss per share is same as
the amount of basic loss per share.

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION)

BHE-Z—HAFE-T—WNFE+=A
Tt HIEFETEEETH SR
R-EALERETSEESHBEGRE
REIB SRR ©

M. BEEIRAX(BEEEHE)

2015 2014
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-EF —E-EF
FE T FHETT

Wages, salaries, allowance and other TE #He ELNEME
benefits in kind YIRS 116,784 92,384

Retirement benefit scheme contribution  EREFEHEI 2k

defined contribution plans TR RETE 48,714 23,783
165,498 116,167

At 31 December 2015, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension scheme in future years. (2014: Nil)

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 12. EEM<
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors, EffsSENEEZM e (RIE LR A
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and disclosed KEEARAEFIE383(1)a) ~ (b) * ()
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) EOBARARI(FEEEFER)
and () of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part BOIE2F 2 METFAET)WOT -
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, were as follows:
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
BHREFFE
e HeRE e @t
FAR TER TERL FER
2015 “%-1f
Executive Directors H11EZ
Wu Jiahong BRAL - 650 18 668
Yang Hua ES - 2,057 6 2,063
Dong Cunling ERlk - 2,099 - 2,099
Zhou Guangwen FEX - 300 - 300
Chen Xu A - 720 - 720
Non-Executive Director FNTES
Li Chunyan FEE 300 149 - 449
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFATES
Chen Renbao BCE 150 - - 150
Ma Yueyong SRR 150 - - 150
Jiang Xiaohui** BigEn 150 - - 150
750 5,975 24 6,749
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December 2015 #HE_-—FE—AF+_-_HA=1+—"HILFE

12. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION (continued)

12. EEME (&

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRBEHGE
ok Ho REH 73 @i
TEL T TAL T
2014 “T-NF
Executive Directors HTES
Wu Jiahong BR4A = 650 17 667
Yang Hua BE = 2,155 51 2,206
Dong Cunling 1 - 2,101 - 2,101
Zhou Guangwen FEX - 300 - 300
Chen Xu FR18 - 400 - 400
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Li Chunyan EX 300 88 - 388
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHITES
Chen Renbao E 150 - - 150
Ma Yueyong ERE 150 - - 150
Li Daomin* TER 38 = = 38
Jiang Xiaohu** Bl 75 - - 75
713 5,694 68 6,475

# resigned on 1 April 2014

# appointed on 1 July 2014

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2014:

Nil).

During the year, no share options were granted to the
directors in respect of their services to the Group (2014:

Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director
or chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year (2014: Nil).
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13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included four (2014: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 12. The emoluments payable to the
remaining one individual (2014: one individual) during
the year ended 31 December 2015 were as follows:

B 7% ¥ 3% BT A

—hF+-A=+—HIFE

13. ABRBREHFATL

FR AEEBRERSHFALEED
Z(ZT—MF:OR)EF REZ
e RIME1225 2 9T bR - E
S—B(ZE-—OF : —B)ALTRE

“E-hF+-A=+—HILFE
ZBEmT

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-Af “T-mF
T FET
Basic salaries, housing benefits, other EX%Fe FERM Hth2h
allowances and benefits in kind REYH = 2,080 2,080
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREHFTEI X 18 17
2,098 2,097
The emoluments fell within the following band: e N FLATEE -
2015 2014
No. of individual No. of individual
—E-RF —T—mEF
AE AER
Emolument band < &5 [E
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 TR
2,500,000/ 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office (2014: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no share
options were granted to the remaining one highest paid
individual of the Group to subscribe for ordinary shares of
the Company (2014: Nil).

FR AEEYERAAERSHAL
AR & fE R INA SR B S8R
AR B Z REh B KRB 2 78
B(ZF—mF : &)

BE_T-AFT_A=1T—HLHF
B -UEAXAESEBT -—BRSHFA
ITREBREAERBARRF EBKR
(ZF—m% - #)-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 13. EEEmEEHFALTE)
(continued)
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior ENSENEREEEKE 2N
management were within the following bands: FIATEHE
2015 2014
No. of individuals ~ No. of individuals
—2-&1F —TmE
AE A
Emolument band P <& &6 [
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/ 7T 7 7
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 8 TE
2,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/8702
2,500,000/ 7T 3 3
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERDE
Furniture,
Mining fixtures,
related  equipment

Buildings machinery and
and mining  Plant and and leasehold Motor ~ Construction
structures  machineries  equipment improvement  vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK§'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Bl %8
BER Rikieg RfER

RREEY HERAS HARRRG BENRLE hE  HRIE it
TEL TAL TAL TRL  TER TEL TAL

1 January 2014 R-%-mE-A-A

Cost A 416,433 3),361 194,847 13,406 30,358 25,060 712,965
Accumulated depreciation  ZHTE (74,059) (18,110) (62,300) (7,968) (25,322) - (187759)
Net hook value BEFE 342,374 14751 132,547 5,438 5,036 25,060 525,206
Year ended 31 December HZ-F-ME

2014 tZR=t-RLEE

Opening net book value ~ EHIEEFE 342,374 14751 132,547 5,438 5,036 25,060 525,206
Exchange difference EREE (5,554) (236) 2,131) (87) (80) (409) (8,497)
Additions FE 46,517 655 8663 176 2 104885 160,898
Transfer =t 79,387 = 12,096 = - (91483 =
Disposals e - - - = (509) - (509)
Impairment loss HEEE (50,368) (1337) (14,934) (563) (227) = (67,429)
Depreciation Vil (19,670) (3,405) (19,815) (577) (2,460) = (45,927)
Closing net book value  EXEEFE 392,686 10,428 116,426 4,387 1,762 38,053 563,742
31 December 2014 R-E-BETZB=1-H

Cost A 535,583 3),987 212,464 13,367 28,107 38,053 860,561
Accumulated depreciation  23tH7& (92,529) (21,222) (81,104) (8,417) (26,118) - (2293%)
Impairment loss HEFE (50,368) (1337) (14,934) (563) (227) - (67.429)
Net hook value BEFE 392,686 10,428 116,426 4,387 1,762 38,053 563,742
Year ended 31 December HZ-F-1E

2015 TZA=t-RLEE

Opening net book value ~ EHIEEF(E 392,686 10,428 116,426 4387 1,762 38,053 563,742
Exchange difference EREE (20,722) (524) (5,525) (228) (28) (1,253) (28,290)
Additions FE 37 10 2,095 6 10 497 3,090
Transfer g2 19,960 - - - - (19,960) -
Disposals e (57) - (47) = (60) = (164)
Impairment loss HEEE (90,479) (1.943) (23,697) (837) (109) (2989)  (120,054)
Depreciation Vil (23,990) (869) (18.822) (136) (1575) = (45,392)
Closing net book value EARAFE 277,770 7,202 70,430 3,192 = 14,348 372,94
31 December 2015 R-E-1F+ZA=1-8

Cost A 526,577 31,340 202,911 12,662 26,058 17,337 817,085
Accumulated depreciation 23t & (110,637) (20,929) (94,644) (8.100) (25,934) - (260,244
Impairment loss HEFE (138,170) (3,209) (37.837) (1370) (324) (2,989)  (183,899)
Net book value RERE 277,770 7,000 70,430 3,192 = 14,348 372,94
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15.

(continued)

No interest expense was capitalised during the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: approximately HK$2.3
million) in construction in progress as disclosed in note 7.

Provision for impairment of approximately HK$120.1
million (2014: approximately HK$67.4 million) has been
made during the year ended 31 December 2015 for
those property, plant and equipment within the CGU of
production and sale of coal. (note 17(a)). Particulars of
impairment testing of property, plant and equipment is
set out in note 17.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as
at 31 December 2015 were as follows:

14. ¥ -BEERSE -—F5£H

15.

(&)
BE_T-AFE+_A=+—AL*HF
B UEEERIREAMZAMESTH
(ZZ—PO4F : 492,300,000/ 7C) " =
TBRMI 74 55

BE_Z—RAF+_A=+—HI#F
E EMEERHEERRZBESEAL
BAAZYE  BEMEEELRE
B 5 49120,100,00058 7o( —Z & — M
& #967,400,000% T )o( B
17(a)) > W% BE MR ERER R Z
FIBEEAIRKIE7 -

RTB AR ZRE
AARR-E—RF+-A=+—H
2 EEMBARFENT :

Percentage
of issued Place of
Particulars of capital operation
Place of incorporation issued capital/  held by the and principal
Name and type of legal entity registered capital Company activities
ADEfE
aE AR L 3t B R BERTRE/ EBERTRE LE#ER

£ ERERERR afE R At FEEH

Directly held

EERE

(1) Beat World Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 share of HK$1 100 Management
liability company service in Hong

Kong
SARERAR B8 BREERA 1REE 100 REENZEER
BT %

(2)  Clear Interest Limited ("CIL") British Virgin Island 200 shares of 100 Investment holding
("BVI"), limited liability US$1 each in the PRC
company

Clear Interest Limited ([CIL]) RERZES ((RBEX 200REKAE 100 RPBERERER
BBl BEREEAH 1%7T it

(3)  Star Central Limited BVI, limited liability 1 share of US$1 100 Investment holding

company in Hong Kong
RERAES ARAML 1REE 100 REBRFRER
NG 1%7T ik
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

15. RMIB AR Z2RE (&)

Percentage
of issued Place of
Particulars of capital operation
Place of incorporation issued capital/  held by the and principal
Name and type of legal entity registered capital Company activities
LNV
AL Lt B R BRTRE/ EBRITRE SEHER
£H EEERERR A& AR E BAk TEEK
(4)  Rosan Clean Energy Development Hong Kong, limited 10,000 shares of 51 Investment holding
Company Limited liability company HK$1 each in Hong Kong
BEARERERBRAA BE BREMARE  10,0006FREE 51 REBRASRAR
187 i
(5)  Xinfa Investments Limited (“Xinfa”) BV, limited liability 1 share of US$1 100 Investment holding
company in Indonesia
MEREBRAR ([#%]) RERAFES ARAML REEIET 100 REVEREHRERE
NG ir
Indirectly held
BEEE
(6)  Popular Sky Coal Industrial Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 share of HK$1 100 Investment holding
liability company in the PRC
EXKERRATF BB BREERA 1REE 100 RPBEREREE
18T B
(7)  Hong Kong Zhongyuan Energy Co.,  Hong Kong, limited 1 share of HK$1 100  Investment holding
Limited liability company in the PRC
BEETRERERAH B8 BRATAT 1REE 100 RPERSEHER
187 i
(8)  Hong Kong Zhongzhou Energy Co.,  Hong Kong, limited 1 share of HK$1 100 Investment holding
Limited liability company in the PRC
BERMERAR R BE AREEAA 1REE 100 RABERERER
BT v
(9)  Highlink Investments Limited BVI, limited liability 1 share of US$1 100 Investment holding
company in Hong Kong
RERAEE ARER REE 100 NEENERER
NG| E il
(10)  Alive Investments Limited BVI, limited liability 1 share of US$1 100  Investment holding
company in Hong Kong
RBRLEE AREE  1REEIET 100 REBREREE
NGl e
(11)  Dynamic Coal Company Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 share of HK$1 100 Investment holding
liability company in Hong Kong
BPREERAA BE AREEAA 1REE 100 REBRERER
BT ivd
RS ERIZIRAR AT 2015FFR
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15. RB AR ZBRE (&

102

Percentage
of issued Place of
Particulars of capital operation
Place of incorporation issued capital/  held by the and principal
Name and type of legal entity registered capital Company activities
LN
AL Lt B R BRTRE/ EBRTRE SE#ER
£ EEERER & AR E Bok TEEHR
(12)  Dynamic Energy Development PRC, wholly foreign- HK$20,000,000 100 Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* owned limited liability in the PRC
company
PR RAE (RI)BRRE hESMEEERRAA 20,000,000 T 100 RABEREREE
il
(13)  Beijing Zhong Yue Heneng Technology PRC, wholly foreign- HK$160,000,000 100  Investment holding
Company Limited* (Formerly known  owned limited liability in the PRC
as Zhong Yue Energy Development company
(Shenzhen) Company Limited?)
ERPEMEMRAERDA (FER B IHBEBRAR 160,000,000 T 100 RAEREREE
REgRAE ORI ERAR) i
(14)  Henan Jinfeng Coal Industrial Group ~ PRC, limited liability RMB118,000,000 90 Production and
Company Limited* (“Jinfeng”) company sale of coal and
the trading of
purchased coal
in the PRC
MHtERESERRAA hEBEREEAT AR 90 RHERERKE
(&%) 118,000,0007T ERHERBA
BxE5
(15)  Shenzhen Zhongzhou Energy PRC, limited liability RMB 10,000,000 90 Investment holding
Company Limited* company in the PRC
AT RN EERER R A mE - AREEAA AR 90 RHPEREFREHR
10,000,0007T i
(16)  Xingyun Coal Industry Company PRC, limited liability RMB60,000,000 90 Production and
Limited? company sale of coal in
the PRC
BHMEERXAREEAA mE - AREEAA AR 90 RABERERKE
60,000,0007T ERHE
(17)  Xiangyang Coal Industry Company PRC, limited liability RMB50,000,000 90 Production and
Limited? company sale of coal in
the PRC
BHTREREERAA mE - AREEAA AR 90 RABERERKE
50,000,0007T ERHE
(18)  Denfeng linfeng Mining Equipment  PRC, limited liability RMB1,000,000 90 Trading of mining
Company Limited* company equipment and
consumable
tools in the PRC
EHEERIIRBERLA hE BEREEAT AR 90 RHERFEER
1,000,0007T B RFEM

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

15. RMIB AR Z2IRE (&

Percentage
of issued Place of
Particulars of capital operation
Place of incorporation issued capital/  held by the and principal
Name and type of legal entity registered capital Company activities
LNV
TR IR BRTRE/ EBRITRE SEHER
£ EEERERR A& AR E Botk TEEHR
(19)  Zhengzhou Huirui Shangmo Company PRC, limited liability RMB125,000,000 96 Trading of
Limited* ("Huirui”) company purchased coal,
construction
materials and
accessories
of mining
machineries in
the PRC
gHERBERRAR ([Eik]) hE BREEAA AR 96 RHEREBEAK
125,000,0007T R EEME R
PRI
7
(20)  Henan Zhongyuan JiuAn Foundation & PRC, sino-foreign equity ~ RMB272,387,000 100 Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd.* joint venture in the PRC
AETPRAREZFRERRAA hEPHNEERE AR 100 RABEREREE
272,387,0007T i
(21)  Beijing Kaisheng Guanhua Investment PRC, sino-foreign equity RMB80,000,000 91 Project investment,
Company Limited* (“Kaisheng”) joint venture asset
management
and
consultation of
investment in
the PRC
ERABRBERERRAA hE RIS ERE AR 91 RHEREEAR
([52&]) 80,000,0007T & EERER
R&HF

For identification purpose only

o EHREE

REERIER AR AR
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16. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 16. A RARI AR T
FINANCIAL POSITION
2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & —E-AfF —TE
T FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZRE 775,662 790,695
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other — FB{J3XI8 - k& R H b &
receivables W Fh 18 291 291
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEBEIEE 1,830 2,576
2,121 2,867
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals H Ath {5 3008 & FE AT
£H 5,259 4,635
Net current liabilities RBEEEHE (3,138) (1,768)
Total assets less current liabilities 2 &E E R R B & & 772,524 788,927
Non-current liability FREBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary e —FKBARZ
KIE 13,548 15,033
Net assets EEFE 758,976 773,894
EQUITY % 2 fE 25
Share capital % < 32 71,267 71,267
Reserves # & 34(b) 687,709 702,627
Total equity AR EE 758,976 773,894
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of BEEEgR T -—R"F=-A=+—8#
directors on 31 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf HEREETE  WHATATRESE
by: &
Dong Cunling E#FIK Yang Hua #5%
Director EF Director E*

104  Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ 3% BT A

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

17. GOODWILL 17. BE
The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as HEEmZFEYSFWOT :
follows:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-1HF —EB-IF
TET FET
At beginning of the year F4
Gross carrying amount SR 4 E 272,657 272,720
Accumulated impairment loss ZEtREERE (272,657) (203,688)
Net carrying amount FREFE - 69,032
For the year FA
Opening net carrying amount FYREFE - 69,032
Exchange difference ME =5 - (63)
Impairment loss BEEBE - (68,969)
Closing net carrying amount FREREEFE - -
At end of the year FR
Gross carrying amount BRME AR E 272,657 272,657
Accumulated impairment loss 2t REERE (272,657) (272,657)
Net carrying amount FREFE - =

Goodwill arising in prior years related to the acquisition
of CIL and its subsidiaries (the “CIL Group”) and Huirui,
which was fully impaired in last year. Details of the CGU
of the Group and the impairment testing are as follows:

2T R WECILE EME A R CIL
SEDEKBEMARBEFEELE B
RE—"FE2ARE - AEERGE
BN RRERRZFBNT

REERIERAR AR 2015FF
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17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. & (&
Impairment testing of goodwill, mining rights BE FEEUARYE BERRE
and property, plant and equipment ZBAE R
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill, mining FRENGRmMS R REEUR
rights and property, plant and equipment are allocated to ME - HENSEIEZATIREE
the following CGUs: HEBEAT
2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i 3 —E-1F —T—MF
THT THT
Production and sale of coal HERIEEER (a) - 65,058
Trading of purchased coal BAKRKE S (b) - 3,911
Net carrying amount (before AREDVFE (RETFEERE
impairment loss of the year) E5 18 A ) - 68,969
Mining rights and property, plant and equipment are RIERARDE  BEREZHEHEDE
allocated to the CGU of “production and sale of coal”. ZIEEREERRIZCREELSE
fiz o
(a) Production and sale of coal (a) £ERHEERRK

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the
recoverable amount of the CGU was determined
using fair value less costs of disposal calculations,
covering a detailed five-year budget plan, followed
by an extrapolation of discounted cash flows by
reference to the average market coal price with
similar heating power in the PRC with adjustments,
where necessary, to reflect the differences. In
determining the value of the Group's CGU, the
directors of the Company have taken account of the
estimated coal reserves of the mines after deducting
the cumulative amounts of coal already extracted
and sold. Accordingly, as the Group depletes its coal
reserves, the value of its CGU will also decrease.
The write-down of goodwill carrying amount is
therefore of similar financial statements effects
of amortisation of mining rights as if a separate
fair value had been recognised on the longer-term
mining license on the acquisition of CIL. The fair
value on which the recoverable amount is based on
is categorised as a Level 3 measurement.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

BE_T-AFT-_A=1t—H
HFE -BEeELBMU 2 AIKRE
TR2ERBBLURE 2 RRZ
FEHIGERLIEL 0 EHE
PARBRZ B ) - 2 R FER
EXRAAECRE-—BFELZD
FHEENE) AR RRE
MEELHEEMEE - REEA
SEReELBNZEBER -
ARREZEERERKEL b5t
RHE WREERARRHEZ
RETRE MU BEEAKER
RERFHE ERSELEMZ
EBETEHD Fit aEKRE
1B 0% B2 BR A A 8 S 2 U 75 Sk
FERBL HMERKIEBCILE
[ 5 B I A B3 O SR R P AR
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17. GOODWILL (continued)

(a) Production and sale of coal (continued)

Based on the assessment of the recoverable amount
of the CGU, for the year ended 31 December 2015,
given comparatively low market coal price of the
year and the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than the carrying amount, the Group made
an impairment loss of nil (2014: approximately
HK$69.0 million) on goodwill, and corresponding
impairment losses of approximately HK$120.1
million (2014: approximately HK$67.4 million)
and approximately HK$110.3 million (2014:
approximately HK$67.1 million) on the property,
plant and equipment and the mining rights
respectively associated with this CGU (notes 14 and
18 respectively).

Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation was performed by the
valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited (2014: Sino-Infinite
Appraisal Limited), to determine the fair value of
the CGU of production and sale of coal as at 31
December 2015. The impairment losses are included
in consolidated income statement. The following
table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s CGU of production and sale of coal
carried at fair value:

17. & (&

(a)

SEREERKR(E)
EREBE_ZTZ—HF+_-A
—t+—RUEFERRESEAEM
AW E R 2T EREA
MSREEREREMZACEE
Bz Al e & RN BREE
AEBHBHEFIRBEBES

—ZF— P4 : 4J69,000,000/8
JL) ARG IR S E A AL
At 2 W E KRB R
&7 5 Bl 5T 2 49120,100,00078
JT(ZZF— M4 : #67,400,000
1) & #49110,300,000/8 7T ( =
T — 04 : 467,100,000/ 7T )
ZBEEE(D R RMHE14K%
18)°

AFEER

A i A EHERE R A R
AR M PRFEE
BAR)E#T—RBILEE
UETEERBERR L ASE
EBRIR-F—AF T A
=+—RAZATEREBAD
SAGA SRR TRIIRE
AFEFIR 2 AEE EERHE
Rz RE BBy ATE

EFM

Fair value measurements categorised into

AVEHEZAE
Quoted prices
in active Significant Significant
markets for observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REEER EXTBE EARY
ERTELHRE BABE BERANE
@it (E-%) (=) (F=%)
THR Tén THR Thx
As at 31 December 2015 R-E-hE+-A=1-H
Recurring fair value measurement CGU of ~ MEHATEHERREERKE
production and sale of coal LREEEEf 784,619 - - 784,619
As at 31 December 2014 RZE-MF+-A=1-H
Recurring fair value measurement CGU of ~ MREHATEHERREERKE
production and sale of coal LBEEEEN 1,107,525 - - 1,107,525
BEERIERARAR 20155 F 3R
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Rosan Resources Holdings Limited

17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. & &
(a) Production and sale of coal (continued) (a) AENHEEER(E)
Valuation processes of the Group rAEFZEEERF

The Group’s CGU were valued as at 31 December
2015 by independent professionally qualified valuer,
Asset Appraisal Limited, who have among their staff
Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
have recent experience in the valuation of mining
industries.

The Group’s finance department, which directly
reports to the chief financial officer, review the
valuations performed by the independent valuer
of financial reporting purposes. The finance
department holds discussions with the independent
valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results.

Management’s key assumptions were used in the
fair value less costs of disposal calculation of the
CGU for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
following described each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projects to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill.

Net profit margins — Management determined
net profit margin based on past experience
in this market and its expectations for market
development.

Discount rate — The discount rate reflects specific
risks relating to the mining industry.

Growth rate — The management has taken the
growth of the coal industry and the global economy
as a whole.

The discount rate and growth rate used to
extrapolate in the cash flow projection are shown as
below:

AEBEZRACELEUN_-F
—hAFt-_A=t—HABAE
ERERMGEMPRIEERA
RETHE ZARBERTE
RIEZRE &K E - B AHBRET
M AR -

RHBHRERBNME  AREZ
M EF (ER A AEER)
EHBUAERMETTZEE B
R A E R R EARRE
M A ERIETTA A o

FTEEHE—_ZT—FREF+ A
=+ HIEFERSEELEMNY
AFEREERAR  EEER
KAEXTEEREX - TUHMERE
EETEEREIABEER
MERAFACZSEETERK-

FNER -EEERBENSK
BEEBMISER CBHMEEF
bR

TR — TR R R B
ZHERR -
Rk —EREEBIBEAR

TTENR RN 2GR -

RemETRA T HEEER 2R
KRR ERWT

2015 2014

—F-HF —TNF

Growth rate 2.9% 2.6%
per annum per annum

# R E FH2.9% HFF2.6%
Discount rate 17.0% 11.5%
per annum per annum

IR FHF17.0% HFF11.5%

Annual Report 2015
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GOODWILL (continued)

17. BE (&

(a) Production and sale of coal (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (continued)

Apart from the considerations described in
determining the fair value less costs of disposal
calculation of the CGU above, the Group’s
management is not currently aware of any other
reasonably possible changes that would necessitate

changes in its key estimates.

(b) Trading of purchased coal

Goodwill associated to this CGU of approximately
HK$3.9 million was fully impaired as at 31

December 2014.

SEREERR(E)
FrEEZHERF (&)
EE LAREELBM AT
BRI SRR 2 EBREIN
AEEEEERNY TAESE
BERMEHREE 2 (EEAM
BEAREE-

BARRES
ERZASELENZHEY
3,900,000 T E RN =& — Y4
+-A=+—HE2@ERE"-

MINING RIGHTS 18. HRIERE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-1f —T-mF
FET FET
At 1 January m—HA—H
Gross carrying amount FREARE 745,240 759,416
Accumulated amortisation g £ (116,946) (112,043)
Impairment loss BEEE (67,122) -
Net carrying amount R FE 561,172 647,373
Net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEREFE 561,172 647,373
Amortisation H (9,047) (8,675)
Exchange difference M=% (29,465) (10,404)
Impairment loss A E A (110,298) (67,122)
Net carrying amount at 31 December R+-_HA=+—HZ
BREEE 412,362 561,172
At 31 December Rt+-_A=+—H
Gross carrying amount FREARE 705,635 745,240
Accumulated amortisation N £ (119,421) (116,946)
Impairment loss BB BB (173,852) (67,122)
Net carrying amount R FE 412,362 561,172

BMEBERERERRDF 2015FFH
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18.

19.

MINING RIGHTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the remaining useful lives of
mining rights held by the Group ranged from 0.7 to 7.0
years (2014: 0.3 to 8.0 years).

As at 31 December 2015, provision for impairment of
mining rights amounting to approximately HK$110.3
million (2014: approximately HK$67.1 million) has been
made by the Group’s management.

As at 31 December 2015, mining rights with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$389.4 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB326.2 million) (2014: approximately
HK$429.2 million (equivalent to approximately RMB340.5
million)) has been pledged to a bank to secure the
Group’s borrowing (note 30).

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 2015 #HE_-—FE—AF+_-_HA=1+—"HILFE

18. FRIERE (&

R-E—RE+-_A=+—H @K
SEMBEEZRER2HTERAFE
NF0.727.0F(—ZF—M4F : 0.3%
8.0%F )°

R-_E—R&E+=-A=+—1 &&
EEREECREE 2 REELEE
#7110,300,0008 0 ( —F— U4 : 4y
67,100,000/ 7T ) ©

R-E—FRE+—_A=+—8 @A
{E#9389,400,0008 L (HHE RO AR
A R #326,200,0007T )( —Z & — Y
1 49429,200,0005 T (BB R A
R #340,500,0007T)) 2 R ERE D K
BFIRIT LEEAREE 2 AR (M
30)°

9. HEILEE

Computer software licence

EREBGERE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F-HF —TmE
THET FAT
At 1 January m—H—H
Gross carrying amount ARE42E 1,891 ;7515
Accumulated amortisation S (1,806) (1,755)
Net carrying amount BREFE 85 -
Net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZREF#E 85 =
Addition NE - 136
Amortisation iy (69) (51)
Net carrying amount at 31 December R+=—A=+—82
AREFE 16 85
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H
Gross carrying amount FRE4RE 1,891 1,891
Accumulated amortisation e (1,875) (1,806)
Net carrying amount BREFE 16 85

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

20. REEE N R 2R

2015 2014

HKS$'000 HK$'000

—E-fF —F—mF

TR FHET

Share of net assets 5 EEFE 109,834 108,356
Goodwill S - 27,180
Impairment loss REEE - (27,180)
109,834 108,356

Particulars of the associates of the Group as at the end of
the reporting period were as follows:

Place of incorporation

RBEHR AEEHE QR ZFHIT

T :

and type of legal Percentage of issued capital  Place of operation and
Name entity Particulars of registered capital held by the Group principal activities
ERMRLBHR O TEHBR
1 EEERED BROREK/HREAHE ERTRAEAL ITEK
2015 2014 2015 2014
“%-1f “I-mF  -E-1f  ZE-0F
(1) Beijing Zhaohua Hefu Investment PRC, limited liability RMB2,000,000  RMB2,000,000 25% 25%  Investment management,
Management Limited* company asset management
("Zhaohua Hefu") and consultation of
investment in the PRC
IRKEAEREERERAT  HE EREALR ARE ARE 25% 5% REEfEREER &
([k#8E]) 2,000,000 2,000,000 EERRREHD
(2) Beijing Shuozhan Zhongfu Investment  PRC, limited partnership RMB100,000,000  RMB100,000,000 99% 99%  Project investment,
Centre* (Limited Partnership) investment
(the "Partnership”) (Note a) management, assets
management and
consultation service in
the PRC
IRERTERERL (BREY) B BRa¥LE ARE ARE 99% 9% RAERZEERE &
(I6%L%]) (W) 100,000,000 100,000,007 BER EEERRAN
%
(3)  Bejing Baiyitong Technology Co., Ltd™*  PRC, limited fiability ~ RMB38,194,444*  RMB22,250,000 9%* 34%  Development of computer
(“Balyitong") (Note b) (Note 22 (b)) company software and provision
of information
technology services in
the PRC
IREEANEARAR (A PE ERACLF AR¥ ARE 9%* 1% RNPEREREEREHN
&l) (Wab) (Fztaa) 38,194444T% 22,250,007 REBEEA MRS

Baiyitong has ceased to be an associate of the Group and
has been held as a financial asset of the Group since 14
May 2015 (Note b) (Note 22(b)).

For identification purpose only

B-Z—AFAHA+HAE G
BETHRANEEZBERNA M
EERAEBENEHEEMITA
(KizEb) (Kfaz22(b)) °

o EHES
REERIER AR AR
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20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Note:

(a)

Pursuant to the partnership agreements entered in
May 2012 and June 2012, the general partner of the
Partnership is Zhaohua Hefu (the “General Partner”),
which is an associate of the Group, owns 1% of the
equity interest of the Partnership. The General Partner is
responsible for management and control of the business
of the Partnership while Kaisheng, the limited partner
of the Partnership, possesses significant influence over
the operating and financial policies of the Partnership
through its participation in the investment committee.
As abovementioned, although the Group owned 99%
equity interest in the Partnership, the Group only possess
significant influence over the operating and financial
policies of the Partnership, therefore, the investment
has been classified as interests in associates in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at the
reporting date.

Pursuant to the capital injection agreement entered
in January 2013, Kaisheng agreed to inject a cash of
approximately HK$15.2 million (equivalent to RMB12.0
million) (the “First Capital Injection”) to Baiyitong.
According to the agreement, Kaisheng is entitled to 34%
of equity interests of Baiyitong when the First Capital
Injection is completed. After the first year and second
year from the date of the First Capital Injection, Kaisheng
is required to inject a further cash of approximately
HK$11.4 million (equivalent to RMB9.0 million) (the
“Second Capital Injection”) and approximately HK$11.4
million (equivalent to RMB9.0 million) (the “Third Capital
Injection”) respectively, if the number of customers
increases to the agreed target in the first year and
second year from date of the First Capital Injection
(the “Contingent Conditions”). The equity interests of
Baiyitong to be held by Kaisheng will remain at 34%
when the Second Capital Injection and Third Capital
Injection are completed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Note: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

On initial recognition, the management considered
Baiyitong could fulfill the Contingent Conditions and the
Group was liable to pay the Second Capital Injection and
the Third Capital Injection and estimated that the fair
value of the contingent consideration at the acquisition
date was approximately HK$22.8 million (equivalent
to RMB18.0 million). The contingent consideration
was included as part of the cost of acquisition and the
liabilities were recognised as other payables under current
liabilities and non-current liabilities based on the payment
terms. Moreover, the difference between the cost of
acquisition and the Group’s share of the net assets in
Baiyitong was recognised as goodwill of approximately
HK$27.2 million (equivalent to approximately RMB21.2
million) at the acquisition date. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the fair values of intangible
assets of Baiyitong at the date of the First Capital Injection
were minimal, as such, no intangible assets have been
separated from goodwill as at the date of the First Capital
Injection. The Second Capital Injection amounting to
approximately HK$11.4 million (equivalent to RMB9.0
million) was paid during the year ended 31 December
2014.

The directors of the Company had performed an
impairment testing on the recoverable amount of the
interests in associates and concluded that the carrying
amount was in excess of its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount was determined using value in use
calculations. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and risk specific to
the asset. Accordingly, a full provision of impairment
amounted to HK$27.2 million in the interests of associates
was charged to the consolidated income statement during
the year ended 31 December 2014.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 £ %= ==

20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Note: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

On 3 March 2015, Kaisheng has reached an agreement
with an independent third party, to transfer the
obligations and rights under the Third Capital Injection
to the independent third party and pursuant to the
agreement, Kaisheng has transferred 10.2% equity
interests of Baiyitong to the independent third party in
return. Immediately upon the completion of transaction
on 3 March 2015, Kaisheng held 23.80% equity interests
in Baiyitong. In addition, the independent third party
also agreed to subscribe for additional equity interest of
Baiyitong in the amount of approximately HK$2.5 million
(equivalent to RMB2.0 million). Immediately upon the
completion of the subscription, Kaisheng’s interest in
Baiyitong was further diluted to 23.11%.

On 14 May 2015, Kaisheng has reached an agreement
with another independent third party. Pursuant to the
agreement, 11.97% of Kaisheng’s equity interests in
Baiyitong were sold to the independent third party at a
consideration of RMB11,970,000. Immediately upon the
completion of transaction, Kaisheng’s equity interests in
Baiyitong were dropped to 11.14%. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group no longer has
significant influence in Baiyitong following the aforesaid
transaction completed on 14 May 2015, the Group’s
equity interests in Baiyitong was reclassified as available-
for-sale financial assets since then (note 22 b)).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a gain of
approximately HK$25.1 million was arose from the
disposal of equity interests in Baiyitong and recognised in
the consolidated income statement during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. REHE R TF 2R (8)
The following illustrates the summarised financial WTAAEEERNBERR(AER
information of the Group's material associate, the EI)ZHBERRE  DRitaEE
Partnership, extracted from its management accounts ERB(BIEAZURRERNEER
which have been adjusted to ensure consistency in M2 EETBR—B0)-

accounting policies adopted by the Group.

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—Z2-I1% —FmF
FERT FET
As at 31 December R+=-BA=+—H

Current assets MBEE 119,822 109,309
Current liabilities mEaE (10,674) (5,462)

Year ended 31 December BZEZ+t=-HA=1+—H

ILtEE

Revenue g 25 _ B
Profit for the year R F 4,843 18,509
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EW A 4258 4,843 18,509
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # £ —

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests in
the associates recognised in the consolidated financial

T RF+-AS+—HIFE

20. REtERNR 2R (&

PA Bt 9 B 75 B R B AR B B S ¥R R
PRRERIN B ‘2 A Al s AR E (B /O ¥
BRANR -

statements:

2015 2014
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-1F E¢
Net assets of the associate BE N NRl 2 FEE 109,148 103,847
Group’s interest in the associate AREBRBENA] 2R 99% 99%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ~ ZN&EBRBL Q72 %
in the associate Z R A 108,057 102,809

The summarised financial information of immaterial
associates is set out below:

EBTEEHME RN ZHEERHE
AT -

2015 2014
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-1fF —FmF
THER FET

Year ended 31 December BE+-BA=+t—BLFE
The Group’s share of loss for the year REBELEFAEBE (1,007) (4,129)

The Group's share of comprehensive loss ARNEBE EGFANEEER

for the year (1,007) (4,129)

Amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free

and repayable after twelve months from the reporting
date.
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—hF+-A=+—HIFE

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 21. R—EEE X EE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-1f ZT—mF
TET TAT
Share of net assets BLEEZRE 6,317 6,624
Particulars of the joint venture of the Group as at 31 R-ZE-—AFT_A=+—H &%
December 2015 were as follows: EEEREZFBFET :
Percentage
of issued Place of
capital operation
Place of incorporation Particulars of held by the and principal
Name and type of legal entity registered capital Group activities
AEEfE
EMRILER ERTRE KEBER
£ EEERER A& AR E ok TEEHR
Henan Chalco Li Chuang Resources Company PRC, other limited liability ~ RMB10,000,000 51% Sale of alumina in
Limited* (“Henan Chalco”) (Note) company the PRC
AR RVABREAR AR mE At EREEAR AR 51% RAEHES LA
(FAmsal) (M) 10,000,0007T
# For identification purpose only i 2 {35 5l
Note: Although the Group owned 51% equity interest in Henan Hist: EREAREEEETETIR51%E

Chalco, the Group and the other shareholder of Henan
Chalco have joint control over Henan Chalco and none
of the participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity pursuant to the joint venture agreement
entered in July 2012. Therefore the investment has been
classified as interest in a joint venture as at the reporting
date.

g BB RO R e 2 B A
P BR 31 0 7 o £ 5 2k R4 4 -

BE_F——Ft A"
i MEZ2ELTRLEEDA

BHREEME B RREH
H ZREHEIBARAERE
P

REERZERERAR 2015554
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

21. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

The summarised financial information of the material

21. R—BEEERZEH(E
AEBEAS X HHER KL

joint venture of the Group is set out below: R
2015 2014
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-1F —EB-IF
FER FHT
As at 31 December BR+=—A=+—H
Non-current assets ERBEE 2 6
Current assets MEEE 12,384 12,981
Current liabilities mEEE - -
Included in the above amounts are: RS BEERE:
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEEIER 8,295 9,568
Year ended 31 December BE+-—A=+—HLEE
Revenue U #5 - -
Profit for the year F A g A 93 1,282
Total comprehensive income FHIKRARRE 93 1,282
Included in the above amounts are: LR EBEEE:
Depreciation e 4 5
Interest income B WA 185 234
Income tax expense P53 5 2 - 2

The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or
other commitments relating to its joint venture.

RAEHEAMALE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 21. R—HEEe8 X R (E)

DA Bt 9 B 75 B R B AR B B S ¥R R
PR RN — R E XM EREE

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in a

joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial RUEARANT -
statements:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
—E-fF —FmF
TER FET
Net assets of the joint venture BRECEREEFE 12,386 12,987
Group's interest in the joint venture AEBREGEREHE
Z 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ~AREB R A &
in the joint venture 2w BREE 6,317 6,624
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22, A[tHESREE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-fF —FmF
TER TET
Non-current R E
Unlisted equity securities in Indonesia ENJE IE T AR 55 5
(note a) (Keta) - 26,566
Unlisted equity securities in the PRC B IE R AN A
(note b) (K1aEDb) 706 =
706 26,566
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE_—FT—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

Note:

(a)

(b)

The unlisted available-for-sale equity securities as of
31 December 2014 represented 19% equity interest
in an entity establishment in Indonesia (“Indonesia
Investment”), which are measured at cost less impairment
at each reporting date because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant and the probability
of the various estimates is significant. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the fair
value cannot be reliably measured.

On 18 March 2015, Xinfa, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, has entered into an agreement with an
independent third party, who is also a shareholder of the
Indonesia Investment and holds 81% equity interest of
the Indonesia Investment. Pursuant to the agreement,
both parties agreed to wind up the Indonesia Investment
and the independent third party agreed to repay all the
capital injected by the Group in the Indonesia Investment,
amounted to approximately HK$26.6 million (equivalent
to US$3.4 million), and handle the wind up procedures.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, approximately
HK$15.5 million (equivalent to US$2 million) have been
received by the Group. The outstanding consideration
of approximately HK$11.0 million (equivalent to US$1.4
million) has been included in other receivables (note 25)
and in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
recoverability of the remaining balance of approximately
HK$11.0 million is in doubt and should be fully impaired
and recognised in the consolidated income statement
during the year.

Investment in Baiyitong was reclassified as available-for-
sale financial assets during the year (note 20 b)).

As at 31 December 2015, Kaisheng owned 9.11% equity
interest in Baiyitong, which are measured at cost less
impairment at the reporting date because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant and
the probability of the various estimates is significant,
accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the fair value cannot be reliably measured.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
carrying value of the Group’s equity interests in Baiyitong
is approximately HK$706,000 as at 31 December 2015.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

INVENTORIES 23. 7§
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2-1F —E-IF
THER FET
Coal jL 8 272 15,407
Spare parts and consumables T K E A FE 5,072 11,552
5,344 26,959
During the year ended 31 December 2015, HK$750,000 BE_T—RAF+_-_A=+—HIF
(2014: Nil) was recognised as an expense for written € 750,000 t( = — U &F : £)
down inventories to net realisable value. This is WRAERY  NEEEHREE A &
recognised in cost of sales. A - Z BN ER RN
ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24. BRERR R ERE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-fF —FmF
THER FET
Accounts receivable JiE 4K B 3K 194,649 184,041
Bills receivable eSS 5,969 252
200,618 184,293
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (15,260) (14,298)
185,358 169,995

The Group’s sales are billed to customers according to
the terms of the relevant agreements. Normally, credit
periods ranging from 60 to 180 days (2014: 60 to 180
days) are allowed to certain customers. Based on the
invoice dates, ageing analysis of the Group's accounts
receivable, net of any provision for impairment at the
reporting date is as follows:

AEBREEBERZRERAZFAL
HERZE-MAETRFEEFZEEN
—BNF60H E180H (T —M4F :
60HE£180H ) - NMBEBH A& E
2 FEURBR SR (0B (AR (B e ) 4 3%
A EZRROTOT ¢

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$°000

—F-If —F-MF

TERT TAT

0 - 90 days 0Z90H 115,688 137,697
91 - 180 days 91%180H 27,362 32,026
181 - 365 days 181%365H 8,984 =
Over 365 days 18365 H 27,355 20
179,389 169,743
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

As at 31 December 2015, accounts receivable of
approximately HK$143.0 million (2014: approximately
HK$105.0 million) were pledged to secure bank loans of
the Group (note 30).

Based on due dates, ageing analysis of the Group's
accounts receivable that were not impaired, is as follows:

24. EWEBRFI R EE (&

R-ZE—RFE+_A=+—H %
143,000,000 t( —F — M F : 49
105,000,000/8 7T ) 2 FE W BR SRAE B AR
EERERITER IR (IE30)-

AEBRBEEBERFTIZBIHE Z
RRER DA T

2015 2014
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-1fF —F-mF
FER FHT
Neither past due nor impaired AR HH R ERE 143,050 166,570
Past due for less than 3 months wED R =18 A 2,281 3,153
Past due for more than 3 months but less 38 = {@& A LA {8 DR
than 6 months ~E A 6,703 -
Past due for more than 6 months but less 3 Hi /<1 B LA _F{B DR —4
than 1 year 5,637 3
Past due for more than 1 year BHI—F A+ 21,718 17
179,389 169,743
Movement in the allowance for impairment of accounts JEWER SR EREE BN T -
receivable is as follows:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-T1f —T—mF
FTERT FAT
At 1 January n—H—H 14,298 12,298
Impairment loss on accounts receivable — FEUBE X 2 JR(E & 18 1,792 2,199
Exchange difference EH ZERE (830) (199)
At 31 December Nt+=—_A=+—H 15,260 14,298

At each reporting date, the Group reviews accounts
receivable for evidence of impairment on an individual
and collective bases. As at 31 December 2015, the
Group determined accounts receivable of approximately
HK$15.3 million as individually impaired (2014:
approximately HK$14.3 million). Impairment loss of
approximately HK$1.8 million has been recognised in the
consolidated income statement during the year (2014:
approximately HK$2.2 million).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-T—AF+-_HA=+—HIFE

24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

25.

(continued)

Accounts receivable that were neither past due nor
impaired related to customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired
related to customers that had been the Group’s
customers for more than 1 year and had a good track
record of credit with the Group with no history of default
in the past. Based on past credit history, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered to be fully recoverable. The Group did not
hold any collateral in respect of accounts receivable past
due but not impaired.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

24. BWRRRZEE (&)

25.

R ER B RRE 2 FE YRR SR B A A 4
R EPER -

B E BB RBE 2 RURFOS R B
SEEPHBEEF HAKBEERIFE
BiERTE AREYEERELZ
BEE -REBEBEERCHE  HENER

Bl r 2EEE SR EREEA
HZEERIEL ERRER B - &
R % E BB RRE 2 R
TREFHB EAAT R o

ANRE  BEREABERR
|

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF e S ItES
FHERT FHET
Prepayments, deposits paid and other ERFRIE - B RE R
receivables H {th j& W sk I8 197,898 195,352
Provision for impairment R (B B (50,639) (42,101)
147,259 153,251

Movement in the allowance for impairment of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is as follows:

WA FOB 2 % T A R OB
BEEBNT :

2015 2014

HKS$'000 HK$'000

—E-I1% —F-MAF

FHET FHET

At 1 January R—H—H 42,101 12,034
Impairment loss B & 18 16,675 31,536
Reversal of impairment loss B OB EEE (5,909) (1,261)
Exchange difference PE W = %E (2,228) (208)

At 31 December W+=—B=+—H 50,639 42,101
AEERIZRAR AT 2015F F3R
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For the year ended 31

25.

26.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group reviews prepayments,
deposits paid and other receivables for evidence of
impairment on an individual and collective bases. As
at 31 December 2015, the Group determined deposits
paid and other receivables of approximately HK$50.6
million as individually impaired (2014: approximately
HK$42.1 million). Impairment loss of approximately
HK$16.7 million (2014: approximately HK$31.5 million)
has been has been recognised in the consolidated income
statement during the year.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Pledged bank deposits

As at 31 December 2015, bills payable of
approximately HK$661.3 million (2014: the entire
balance) were secured by the pledge of the Group’s
time deposits of approximately HK$577.8 million
(equivalent to RMB484.0 million) as at 31 December
2015 (2014: approximately HK$255.9 million
(equivalent to RMB203.0 million)). Further details of
bills payable were included in note 27.

The effective interest rates of the pledged bank
deposits are at 2.00% (2014: 2.55%) per annum.

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2015, included in cash and cash
equivalents of the Group is approximately HK$534.6
million (2014: approximately HK$505.1 million) of
bank balances denominated in RMB placed with the
banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency; however, under the PRC’'s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through the banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business in
the PRC.
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26.

December 2015 #HE_-—FE—AF+_-_HA=1+—"HILFE

FANFIR - e R HE RN
5 (%)

REREBH ASBIZRER K&
EERNEMNRE B R EM
ERFEERLBERETFR - R=F
—HFE+-_A=+—8 XA&EBE®ETE
ERRAEZ BEffiRe Rt FRIE
#950,600,000/ ;o — & — MU 4 : 4
42,100,000/ 7T) c FAE L 4R & W
X MR 4916,700,0005 7T 2 BB E 12
(ZZ—PO4% : 931,500,000/ 7T )

BEFRITEREREEREAS
Z{E1EE
(a) BEFR/ITER
RZE—RAF+=—A=1+—8"
& 1 = & 49661,300,0007% JT
—TUF  BELHR)BASE
ER—FT—AF+=-_A=+—H
2 TF HA1F 5 49577,800,0007 7T
(A& N AR #484,000,0007T)
—ZF — M4 : 49255,900,000
B T B E R AR K
203,000,000 ) ) fEH# #H - fE 1
FEERE—DFHBHIAME
27 °

EEFIRTERAZERNR A
£2.00%(=F—PY4E:2.55%)°
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27. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

27. BENERRKERE

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

—F-If —FmF

TER THET

Accounts payable FEATBR K 26,838 33,311
Bills payable AN S 772,921 356,778
799,759 390,089

The Group was granted by its certain suppliers with credit
periods normally ranging from 30 to 90 days (2014: 30 to
90 days). Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis
of the Group’s accounts payable at the reporting date is
as follows:

ETHERRAEER T KRN F30
ZF90RH(ZF—M%F : 30890H) 2
RE-NREEH RERAHHE
ZAKBRMNERZ REONMAT

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-EE —E—F

FER FET

0 — 90 days 0%290H 2,624 4,382
91 - 180 days 91H £180H 2,040 2,638
181 — 365 days 181H £365H 1,756 11,489
Over 365 days B 1E365H 20,418 14,802
26,838 33,311

As at 31 December 2015, bills payable of approximately
HK$661.3 million (2014: the entire balance) were secured
by the pledged time deposits amounted approximately
HK$577.8 million (2014: approximately HK$255.9
million) (note 26(a)).

As at 31 December 2015, bills payable of approximately
HK$159.4 million (2014: approximately HK$75.6 million)
were guaranteed by independent third parties and
approximately HK$35.8 million (2014: Nil) were jointly
guaranteed by a shareholder of the Company and
independent third parties.

R-ZE—RE+=-_A=1+—"H0"' %
661,300,000 C( = F—H4F : &5
BEIONENEEHRSBEY
577,800,000/ ;t( =& — U F : 4
255,900,000/ 7T ) K9 E. & 1 & HiTF 3K
ER(KIzE26(a))°

RZE—RAFE+-_A=+—8"4
159,400,000/ ;t( —Z T — M F : 4
75,600,000/ 7T ) B FE < 45 B 8 3
=R 435,800,000/ (=&
—F  B)RAR A — B R EE
S E= T HERER-
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28.

29.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Included in other payables and accruals is a loan
amounting to approximately HK$41.8 million (equivalent
to RMB35.0 million) (2014: Nil) advanced from a
related company, in which a substantial shareholder
of the Company is a major shareholder of the related
company. The balance is unsecured, interest-free and is
repayable on 4 April 2016. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the carrying amount of the balance
approximates to its fair value.

28.

HttENREREFTER
HEMRIELEGFERRER —ME
BEAR(ARAR—BEEREAZ
BEARMETERE)REHLY
41,800,000 (& R AR ¥
35,000,000t ( ZE -4 : &) F
HeoEHAEIRF 28 RARC
T RNFHAMNHEE AN AES
RE ZEHNEAEREEQAFEM
go

PROVISION FOR RECLAMATION 29. HEERRE
OBLIGATIONS

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—Z2-1% —FmF
FTER FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 90,983 85,249
Provision made during the year FANEE 8,077 7,743
Payments (NES - (635)
Exchange difference bE W = %8 (5,155) (1,374)
At 31 December Nt+=—_A=+—H 93,905 90,983

Provision for land restoration, environmental restoration
and safety costs pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations
and current mining activities are determined by
management based on their best estimates. However,
in so far as the effect of land and the environment
from current mining activities becomes apparent in
future periods, the estimate of the associated costs
may be subject to change in the near term. The
amounts provided in relation to restoration and safety
costs are reviewed regularly based upon the facts and
circumstances available at the time and the provisions are
updated accordingly.
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As at 31 December 2015, bank loans of approximately
HK$262.4 million (2014: approximately HK$239.3
million) were secured by certain accounts receivable
(note 24) and certain mining rights of the Group (note
18) (2014: secured by certain accounts receivable and a
mining right of the Group).

As at 31 December 2015, bank loans of approximately
HK$393.7 million (2014: approximately HK$560.8
million) were guaranteed by independent third parties
and bank loans of approximately HK$131.3 million (2014:
Nil) were jointly guaranteed by a shareholder of the
Company and independent third parties.

30. BANK LOANS 30. fRITEX
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F-If —FmF
FER FET
Bank loans repayable within one year and ZBR—E RNEE R A
classified as current liabilities REBABEZHRITER 524,985 560,819
Analysed as follows: ST -
2015 2014
—E-1fF —T-mF
Annual Annual
effective effective
contractual contractual
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
EREH BBRAL
FRIZ ERI%
(%) ) TER (%) 28 TET
Secured BiEA 4.04%-5.35%  on demand 143,001 4.44%-5.60% on demand 188,913
BREREE BEERER
Secured BIEA 5.35%-6.60% 2016 119,370 6.16% 2015 50,428
Unsecured 37 589% on demand 23,874 - - -
BAREREE
Unsecured K H 5.98%-10.92% 2016 238,740 6.16%-9.99% 2015 321,478
524,985 560,819

WR—ZE—RAFE+-_A=+—8"4
262,400,000 ;e — T — PO F : 49
239,300,000 70) 2 RITEFKARE
B AT RrREERR(KFE24) RETH
BE(HFISNZZE—WMF : UAE
ErzETRBERREHR —EFEE
) EREIR -

RZE—FE+_B=+—8"' %
393,700,000 (=T — W F : 4
560,800,000/ 7T ) Z IRITE R E L
F=HRHEER 4131,300,000E 7T
(ZE—MF : &) 2RITEFHAR
Al — AR B = IR R
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31. DEFERRED TAX

31. IEERIIE

As at 31 December 2015, all tax losses and deductible
temporary differences of the Group have no expiry dates
under the current tax legislation except for the tax losses
amounted to approximately HK$408.4 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB342.1 million) (2014: approximately
HK$249.4 million (equivalent to approximately RMB197.8
million)) incurred by three subsidiaries in the PRC, which
will expire after 5 years from the year in which the losses
were incurred. The Group has taxable losses arising in
Hong Kong of approximately HK$1.9 million (2014:
approximately HK$2.2 million). Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and the unpredictability of future profits.

Movement in deferred tax liabilities during the year is as
follows:

R-E—RE+-_A=+—0" 8%
WMEHEED  AEBFAEBIEESR
Ko A] H0ORED B 1 = A R R R R
BN =ZXMNBRARAEENSELY
408,400,000 (M E R D AR K
342,100,0007C ( = F — M F : 4
249,400,000 T(BHE R D AR
197,800,0007T ) ) TR IE G BRI - H
BREBEEEFRERTAFEEM-
AEBREBELERRBEBEY
1,900,000/ 7T( —Z T — MW F: &
2,200,000 7T ) BN EBTIEE B
—EHEHBEEBZHNEBRR RARERE
AR EA - AW ERZE B ER
BEFIBEEE

FRETERAREL BHIT

Impairments Amortisation

of mining allowance on
rights and mining rights

property, in excess
plant and of related
equipment amortisation Total
REREUR PR 8
ME- - BER BERLHEE
FiEZRE B HE et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FHET
At 1 January 2014 R-—ZT—mE—HA—A - 23,126 23,126
Charged to profit or loss BEmMk (M29)

(note 9) (7,283) 3,286 (3,997)
Exchange difference PE K =58 - (370) (370)
At 31 December 2014 and R=ZE—WE+=H4

1 January 2015 =+t—-BR=%—-1

#—HA—H (7,283) 26,042 18,759
Charged to profit or loss BB MR (#7779)

(note 9) (17,549) 2,727 (14,822)
Exchange difference ERER 1,080 (1,491) (411)
At 31 December 2015 R=-ZB-FHE&E+=A

=+—H (23,752) 27,278 3,526
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, deferred tax liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$9.5 million (2014:
approximately HK$15.6 million) in respect of the
aggregate amount of temporary differences of
approximately HK$95.4 million (2014: approximately
HK$155.7 million) associated with the undistributed
earnings of certain of the Group's subsidiaries have not
been recognised. No deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised in respect of the differences because it is
considered that the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC will
not pay any dividend to their overseas holding companies
in the foreseeable future and the Group is in a position
to control the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and
it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

31. IELERIE (&
R-E—RE+-_A=+—H &&
EETHBRARRD AN 2 EEF1E
= B 4B %8499 500,000/ T ( ZF — Y
% : #915,600,0007% 7T ) HHE 2 A&
B R TR T8 & E# 4995,400,0007% 7T
(ZZ—P% : #9155,700,0007% 7T )
HBAER AR EZERRELERE
BEIHARAEERFE KB AR
WR AR RS RGIMER A
B EAIRR B - B R & B a]
EMBRARIZIRERE BZE=R
HAERA R Z AR E o

SHARE CAPITAL 32. RA&
2015 2014
—E-%HF —E-ImF
Number Number
of shares HK$'000 of shares HK$'000
BB EE THER M in g 8 FAT
Authorised: EE:
At 1 January 2014, 31 RZZE—HF—HA—
December 2014, 1 B ZT-—MF+=
January 2015 and 31 A=Z+—-B8-=%
December 2015, ordinary —HFE—A—HK
shares of HK$0.1 each —E-H%+=AH

=+—0B SKE#
018 Tz &R 30,000,000,000

3,000,000 30,000,000,000 3,000,000

Issued and fully paid: ERTRHR:
At 1 January 2014, 31 RZE-—HFE—HA—

December 2014, 1 A -ZT—MF+=
January 2015 and 31 A=+—R-=%
December 2015, ordinary —RAFE—A—HB K&
shares of HK$0.1 each “E-RF+_A

=+—H SKE#E
0.178 T2 Emk 712,673,692

71,267 712,673,692 71,267

REERIERAR AR 2015FF
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible participants (“Participants”)
of the share option scheme include any employee of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including any
director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries). The
shareholders of the Company approved the termination
of the share option scheme adopted on 20 October 2004
(the “Old Scheme”) and adoption of the new share
option scheme (the “New Scheme"”) in place of the Old
Scheme at the annual general meeting on 27 May 2014.
The New Scheme became effective on 27 May 2014 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for ten years from that date until 26 May 2024.

Under the New Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may at its discretion grant options to the
Participants to subscribe for shares provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the New Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
adoption date. The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

Details of the said termination of the Old Scheme and
adoption of the New Scheme were also set out in the
Company'’s circular dated 24 April 2014.
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 33. Bkt EI (&)
(a) Movements of the share options and their (a) BRESFHREITHEE
exercise price
2014 —ZE—F
Granted Exercised Lapsed At 31 Date of Exercise Exercise
Name or category of At 1 January during during the during the December grant of period of price of
participant 2014 the year year year 2014 share options  share options  share options
RZT-ME
RZT-QE TZR BRERL  BREAE
BEENLIRT —-R-B ERRL Enfl ERER =t+-H A BE BREGEE
(note (i) (note (i)
(Hid() (Hrk(i)
Director
5%
Wu Jiahong 608,175 - - (608,175) - 3 January 3 January 2008 HK$5.9950
2008 to 20 October
2014
Bx4 “FEN\E ZTINE 59950ET
-A=A -A=R%
I S f:3
tA=1H
Other employee
EfifES
Li Chun On 127,500 - - (127,500) - 3 January 3 January 2008 HK$5.9950
2008 to 20 October
2014
FRE “ZTN\E ZFINE 59950
-A=A -A=R%
i S f:3
tA=1H
735,675 - - (735,675) -
Weighted average HK$5.9950 - - HK$5.9950 -
exercise price
METHTEE 59950/ 7T 59950/ 7T
Notes: HiaE :
(i)  All share options granted vest on the date of grant. () FERHZBRESRHEAE
AIATfE
(i) The exercise price of the share options is subject to (i) EREZITEERARRMER

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues,
or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

L RATAT R SR A A H A
BT T B -

BRIEERERBMRAR 2015FFHK
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 33.

(b) Financial effect of the share options
No share options were granted during the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. As at 31
December 2015 and 2014, the Company had no
share options outstanding under the New Scheme.

34. RESERVES 34.

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the consolidated financial
statements.

(i)  Share premium account of the Group includes
the premium arising from issue of shares of
the Company at a premium.

(i) Capital redemption reserve arose from
the purchase of the Company's share for
cancellation and represents a transfer from
the Company’s retained profits equivalent to
the nominal value of the shares purchased for
cancellation.

(iii) Contributed surplus of the Group arose as
a result of (i) the Group reorganisation in
1997 and represents the difference between
the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued under the reorganisation scheme and
the nominal value of the aggregate share
capital of the subsidiaries then acquired,
(ii) the Group reorganisation in 2007 and
represents the reduction of capital of HK$64.1
million pursuant to a special resolution passed
on 1 November 2007; and (iii) the Group
reorganisation in 2012 and represents the
reduction of capital of HK$641.4 million
pursuant to a special resolution.
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34. RESERVES (continued)

(a) Group (continued)

(iv)

(v)

The capital reserve arose from the
capitalisation of retained profits of a PRC
subsidiary.

In accordance with the relevant PRC
regulations, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
required, at the discretion of their directors,
to appropriate a certain percentage of
their profit after tax, if any, to the statutory
reserve fund for the future development and
capital expenditure on staff welfare facilities
purposes.

Pursuant to regulations in the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Group were required to
make a transfer of production maintenance
fee and safety fund to other reserve based on
fixed amounts per tonne of raw coal mined
(net of usage). According to the relevant
regulations, production maintenance fee,
safety fund and other expense of similar
nature are required to be charged to cost
of production and credited to reserve.
Accordingly, the related funds are appropriated
from retained profits.

34. f#EE)

(a) #AKE(%E)

(iv)

(iv)

REERIER AR AR

BAREEIBHR—EF
B B A 9 0K B K B R
femESE -

RIBEVBEHEDER A& EH
RABZHBRRAREE
EMBERBERT - BEB
BEM(ME) 2E TP
BEREERTEESIAER
BERZA  REARFHIA
EETRAREZA -

REBEPBUER AEBEET
BB A RIZAR B R R I
THEE S B(ARE
) SEERBERLE
ESHEBEEMER R
HERD - A EHE %
EESREMENLEE 2
EAFFALERANREE
A - T 3E B RE s A o Bo &
TERFE B BRES
EBRE G IEL DR
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34. RESERVES (continued)

34. #E &)

(b) Company (b) &AF
Equity
component
Capital Share of
Share redemption Contributed option  convertible Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve bonds losses Total
Ex TERES
REE BERE HARR BRERSE ZREARH ZHER #Bg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THTL TAL TEL TAT TAR TAT
At1January 2014 RZE-ME
-A—H 235,334 50 485,676 2,106 - - 723,166
Transfer from HRABRERZZ
contributed surplus to FE#
accumulated losses - - (18,433) - - 18,433 -
Lapse of share option  BERR#E K 4 = = = (2,106) = 2,106 =
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (20,539) (20,539)
At 31 December 2014 R=Z—-MWE+=
1 January 2015 A=t-Bk=%
—-1f-A-A 235,334 50 467,243 - - - 702,627
Transfer from HRARREREZ
contributed surplus to fE#
accumulated losses - - (14,918) - - 14918 -
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (14,918) (14,918)
At 31 December 2015 R=E-1%E
+-R=1-H 235,334 50 452,325 - - - 687,709
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34. RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as
a result of the reorganisations referred to in note
34(a) and represents (i) the excess of the fair value
of the shares of the subsidiaries then acquired,
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof; (ii) the reduction of
capital pursuant to a special resolution passed
on 1 November 2007; and (iii) the reduction of
capital pursuant to a special resolution passed on
10 October 2012. Under the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 (as amended), the contributed surplus is
also available for distribution to the owners of the
Company. However, the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus, if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

Details of share premium account and capital
redemption reserve of the Company are set out in
note 34(a) above.

Pursuant to the special resolution, the directors
of the Company be and are hereby authorised
to use the amount standing to the credit of the
contributed surplus in any manner as may be
permitted by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981
and the bye-laws of the Company including,
without limitation, eliminating or setting off
the accumulated losses of the Company from
time to time without further authorisation from
the shareholders. During the year, contributed
surplus of approximately HK$14.9 million (2014:
approximately HK$18.4 million) was set off with the
accumulated losses.

34. fRfE(&
(b) ARAF(#E)

AR E) A #E 1T T E34(a) P it
BEHREEZBABKRTIENE R
Tk B8 B B A B A% 1D 2 A B R
HAEAKBEZEHRBARMETLZ
RARIRMOEEZEE : (iVRE
—EELF+—A—HBBZE
RISRERERAE LT Z BEAHR : KGii)
BRER-—"Z——F+A+HASB
ZHEFRRBR BT Z IR AEIR -
BEABRE—AN—FRRE
(FM1ER]) A BB INAH DR
FARRABEEG AR 08
ATRIER - BIARR RSB SA
BHBFPEIRIVRTREHIEL D
K

(a) REBEXTHEBIBER R
FHIRM R EAERER
&8k

(o) HEEZAIZREERER
HABEREBEITRARK
Bk BME

BRARRRB GEREEAEE
D BN E3PE34(a)-
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35. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

Jinfeng, a 90% owned subsidiary of the Company, has
material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The NCI of
all other subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the
Group are considered to be immaterial.

Summarised financial information in relation to Jinfeng
and its subsidiaries, before intra-group eliminations, is
presented below:

35. FFiEERER

RABHEBANONER ZMBE LRSS
FEEARFERER IFZEBRRE
mD FEEMYFHAEEESR
100% & 51 2 MY 8 & 7] 2 SF1E IR i a1
WRBTERX -

EHSBRENBA LSS R
(P S B P20 7 R 853 ) Bk 1
T

2015 2014
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-1fF —F-mF
FER FHT
For the year ended 31 December HBZ+_-_A=+—HALFE
Revenue W 5 721,810 475,418
Loss for the year FAEE (346,482) (261,137)
Loss allocated to NCI DI EIEER R 2 BB (34,648) (26,114)
For the year ended 31 December HBZ+_-_A=+—HALFE
Cash flows from operating activities KL% K7HRERE 368,830 82,758
Cash flows from investing activities KREXEBZRER=E (324,215) (291,502)
Cash flows from financing activities FEEKZIRER=E 1,482 168,794
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BERA i) BE 46,097 (39,950)
As at 31 December BR+=-—A=+—H
Current assets mENEE 1,309,207 967,605
Non-current assets ERBEE 902,010 1,239,695
Current liabilities mEaE (2,383,455) (2,030,315)
Non-current liabilities SERBAE (102,531) (118,202)
Net (liabilities)/assets (8B BEERE (274,769) 58,783
Accumulated balance of NCI eI AERS 2 Bt Atk (29,558) 8,192
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. LEHNERE
As at 31 December 2015, total future minimum lease N—_EE—FHF+_A=+—H K&
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in BRI B E 4 5t i i
respect of land and buildings and office equipment FERMAZREENZBEZERAD
payable by the Group are as follows: NRBEERAT -
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2-1HF —T-mF
TEx FAT
Within one year —F R 1,364 2,090
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EEZFRF
(BEREMEBREEN) 256 1,150
More than five years i A F - 13
1,620 3,253
The Group leases certain properties under operating AREBERBELEEHNHEESETWE-
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to MYz e EH—=+F ©
ten years, without option to renew the lease term at [Em B N RIZEL - FH AR E A
the expiry date. None of the lease includes contingent HE o
rentals.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. WARAE

On 28 July 2015, Jinfeng, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
with an independent third party (“Counterparty”),
pursuant to which the parties have agreed to provide
mutual guarantees with respect to each other. Both
parties agreed that should any party (including its
subsidiaries and holding companies) (“Borrower”)
apply for a loan(s) from a bank or financial institution
("Lender”), if the Lender so requires, the other party
(“Guarantor”) shall provide a guarantee(s) for the
obligations of the Borrower under the loan on the
terms and conditions contained in the agreement. The
total amounts to be guaranteed by each party shall not
exceed RMB50.0 million. The effective period of the
agreement shall be from 28 July 2015 to 28 July 2018
("Effective Period”). For each guarantee to be provided
by each party within the Effective Period, the maximum
guarantee period is three years from the date of the loan
agreement.

RZZE—RAFLA-+NH &AAQF]
MEIFE2EHMB AR YE —2F T
F=HRUTEFA DL —HE &
- EHREEAREERER &
FRE wmER—FH(BEEHNBAF
MR ARD(TERA DRSBTS R
BETERADBRBER 5—5F
(TR A D) BRIE & P SRR AR
HAEERARERTHNEBIREE
R ZHERNESBEIBBAAR
#550,000,0007T ° W B B H A =
E-—AF+tA-_+NBE_Z—N\F
+tAZ+NBERB - S FE
EMHARENTEERME &=
EREAEXHBZAGRE=F-
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37.

38.

39.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

As of 31 December 2015, a banking facility amounting
to approximately HK$47.8 million (equivalent to RMB40.0
million) have been applied by a subsidiary of the
Counterparty and pursuant to the aforesaid agreement,
the corresponding amount has been guaranteed by
Jinfeng since 29 July 2015.

At the reporting date, no provision for the financial
guarantee as in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the fair value of the financial guarantee is
insignificant at initial recognition and do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the company
under the guarantee as of the end of the reporting
period.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year and in the prior year:

(a) Compensation of key management

37.

38.

RAREEE)
R-_ZE—R&E+-RA=+—10 HF
F-—HEHBRAAECHBELEN
47,800,0008 (& W A R &
40,000,0007T) KISR1TIR (S + ARIE £t
W HEcEE - —RHF LA
“thBERSLZER-

KRS B8 - 3 8 B RS PR AR A 1
W REARARREEAR UBHE
RRNFERFHRFEIA BR
REBEREHRARRREBERKE
HREARIBEMETAK

BEALRS

BRANER A RIS SRR A AR 0 PRI EE 2
R REHRIN AEBERBEEALR
FANE—FEEATEARS :

(a) EEEBAEZME

personnel
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-T1f —T-mF
THER FET
Total remuneration of key FRETEEEAE
management during the year 2 Me B 8,847 8,572

(b) Financing arrangement

Details of an interest-free loan amounting to
HK$41.8 million (equivalent to RMB35.0 million)
advanced from a related party are disclosed in note
28.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

There was no material non-cash transaction during the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

39.
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—ZREATRENESEAE
41,800,000/ T (HHE R A R
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

41.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in January
2016, Jinfeng, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, has decided to close Xiaohe Coal Mine
No.2 (the “Mine"”), one of the coal mines owned by
Jinfeng. Management considered the current downturn
of the coal market in mainland China, the remaining
resources available in the Mine and the quality of coal
of the Mine, and concluded that it would be more cost
effective to close the Mine permanently.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
results from both its operating and investing activities.
The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors
of the Company meets periodically to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage the Group’'s exposure
to market risks, including changes in interest rates and
currency exchange rates. Generally, the Group introduces
conservative strategies on its risk management. The
Group’s exposure to market risk is kept to minimum. The
Group has not used any derivatives or other instruments
for hedging purposes. The Group does not issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations and its investing activities.

Carrying amounts of the financial assets presented
in statement of financial position are net of
impairment losses, if any. The Group minimises its
exposure to the credit risk by rigorously selecting
the counterparties, performing ongoing credit
evaluation on the financial conditions of its debtors
and tightly monitoring the ageing of the receivables.
Follow-up actions are taken in case of overdue
balances. In addition, management reviews the
recoverable amount of the receivables individually
or collectively at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

40. HEHREE

41.

RFERRE  ARRIFEEIEZEN
BRARSEYN - ZT—R"E—AREH
MeBRENEE, —/V &=
B -BEEEEDRERBARER
RMBZERBER L _RBEESNE
BREEREE FISENERE"
KA BEER — B Al AB BRI ARz

B 7% [ Bes i 1

AEEEFBRKEEBEE LB
BRR AEBEVEEE 2 EAREE
BEKIES - A KRAREFEET
HRTez HMEHETBERIAER
AEBFEY 2 THERER  B2EHE
c—MRiME  AEE
FERRERHEITIRT R - K& E
P ] 2 T 5 R e 4 335 PAME K - 3
EERTROTAE S E M T EAES
e REBWEBEITITAESR T AN

EEE -

(a) FERAR
EERBESRMIAZRHHAR
EREBMTIAZKGRETER
T TERAKESFHBER
ZRB -AEEZEERRTE
KERE-—REBBEIEERE
RBPRTEPZEE

2IRMBRRAR L EREELZ
REEENRRERE(E)-
RTEAEEHREEERR -
AEBBRBIERSTT  HEHK
AZHBRRAFEETEERFN
it BREBEWRRZRE
I SREX BRAE 15 s UK (21 280 H R R ek
Boltdh BEEERNERE B
&5 25 B B8 e 1 FE WU AR Rk 2 AT K
Bl &5 #AKRE LA E
TRERRIZBERE -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) Credit risk (continued)

F—ngt A= —AIEEE

(continued) 41. I ERERE (&)
(a) =ERBK(E)

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents is also limited because the
Group's pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents are all deposited with major banks
located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit
risk to a desirable level.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk
as 88.6% (2014: 81.8%) of the Group's accounts
receivable was due from a major customer of the
Group.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from accounts
receivables is set out in note 24.

At each reporting date, the Group reviews
prepayments, deposits and other receivables for
evidence of impairment on an individual and
collective base. As at 31 December 2015, the
Group determined deposits and other receivables
of approximately HK$50.6 million as individually
impaired (2014: approximately HK$42.1 million).
Base on this assessment, impairment loss of
approximately HK$16.7 million was recognised
during the year (2014: approximately HK$31.5
million).

Other than those disclosed in note 37, the Group
does not provide any financial guarantee at the end
of the reporting period which would expose the
Group to credit risk.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.
Financial instruments bearing variable rates and
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of the
Group’s bank loans are disclosed in note 30. The
Group's exposures to fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk on financial liabilities are
minimal. The directors of the Company consider the
Group's exposures to cash flow interest rate risk on
bank balances as follows:

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group's loss after tax and accumulated losses to a
possible change in interest rates of +/- 0.5% (2014:
+/- 0.5%), with effect from the beginning of the
year. The calculations are based on the Group’s
bank balances held at the reporting date. All other

41. MHEREE A
(b) FIERER

MEABESMIAZ ATES
R RETSHEHR T
RRE) 2 B - DT 8 RE B
B2 4MIASRIFEAEEEE
R mEREARRATEFE
R -

2R B SR 1T B A & B R TR
BWERWE30 - AEEAZZE
AerBEZ A ENRRR M
RenENXRARMTEM R
RNAEERRAERAR 2 EHA
RITAEER 2 RS M E X E N
™

BEE DT
TERE M8 EYRE  NEERK
Y RVESN B E I
B4+/-05%( = F — Y F : +/-
0.5%) &) 2 BRKRE It TIRE
REBERRE BERE 2RITE

variables are held constant. N

(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
increase in increase in
Loss after Accumulated
tax losses
HK$'000 HK$'000
MRBZEE ZitEE
CRA) /#m GRd),#hn
FAT FATT

31 December 2015 —E—hH*E+=_HA=+—H
+0.5% +0.5% (2,028) (2,028)
-0.5% -0.5% 2,028 2,028

31 December 2014 —ZE—mME+=-_A=+—8H
+0.5% +0.5% (2,624) (2,624)
-0.5% -0.5% 2,624 2,624
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For the year ended 31

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The assumed changes in interest rates are
considered to be reasonably possible based on
observation of current market conditions and
represents the management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over the
period until the next annual reporting date.

The sensitivity analysis included in the consolidated
financial statements of the year ended 31 December
2014 has been prepared on the same basis.

The Group manages interest rate risk by monitoring
its interest rate profile regularly. The Group adopts
a policy of ensuring that most of its borrowings are
on a fixed rate basis. The policies to manage interest
rate risk have been followed by the Group since
prior year and are considered to be effective.

Foreign currency risk

The sales and purchases of the Group are
predominantly in RMB which is the functional
currency of the related group entities. The directors
of the Company therefore are of the opinion that
the Group’s sensitivity to the changes in foreign
currencies are low and the Group and Company do
not hedge their foreign currency risk.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
its financial obligations, and also in respect of its
cash flow management.

The Group's objective is to ensure adequate funds
to meet commitments associated with its financial
liabilities. Cash flows are closely monitored on
an ongoing basis. The Group will raise funds
from the realisation of its assets if required. As at
31 December 2015, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$421,818,000. The
liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on
its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from
operations and from the measures adopted by the
directors of the Company as detailed in note 3.1
to the consolidated financial statements to meet its
debt obligations.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered as
effective in managing liquidity risks.

41. BHEREE (7

(d)

REBE S R

MENE TR T EAER B R EEIA
RNRSHEMEREEREN
BrremaEREstzRRE
- AEERBEEMBEER
ReneBRMAZRBE SR

45 o
AA

AEBZEEZAREERRES
TN emaE s BERE - AA
BIRBEAERYEERER
EAEBEBRANBEREEREE
NEEES R-T—HE+=
A=+—H XrEBZREEE
T EA 49 /421,818,000 TT o AN
EEZRBESEFETEURREL
ERARREERBITEBEY
MR 2 i (FIBEH NGRS
BREMEIVDZRREESRA
HIBE S °

ZRBETBRNBEFE—H
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 41. BIERERE &

(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REBESER(E)
The table below summarises the maturity profile of TRUAE DRI REES
the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual AEEemaBE BB :

undiscounted payments:

At 31 December 2015
R-B-R%+-A=1+-H

Within 6 Total
months or 6-12 Over undiscounted Carrying
on demand months 1 year amount  Discount amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
~MEAR
FEEKR RE KR
B2 t+=fB FR-% Bew i) REE
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Accounts and bills ERERREE
payables 799,759 - - 799,759 - 799,759
Other payables and i ENFERER
accruals £R 469,213 - - 469,213 - 469,213
Amount due to an Ef—HBaAF
associate FUE - - 99,005 99,005 - 99,005
Bank loans RITER 349,975 188,310 - 538,285 (13,300 524,985

1,618,947 188,310 99,005 1,906,262 (13,300) 1,892,962

Financial quarantee issued: B B{TBITBER :

Maximum amount BEEREASE
guaranteed (note 37) (Hizt37) 59,685 - - 59,685 - 59,685
At 31 December 2014
RZZ-ME+-A=+-AH
Within 6 Total
months or 6-12 Over undiscounted Carrying
on demand months 1 year amount Discount amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
~MEAR
RRER NE KR
B8 TZfR HR-% X g REE
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Accounts and bills ENEAREE
payables 390,089 - - 390,089 - 390,089
Other payables and Hit e AR et
accruals £H 471,654 - - 471,654 - 471,654
Amount due to an R —HBEAF
associate E] - - 99,442 99,442 = 99,442
Bank loans RITEHN 384,124 192,955 - 577,079 (16,260 560,819
Total A3t 1,245,867 192,955 99,442 1,538,264 (16,260) 1,522,004
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 41. I ERERE &

(e) Business risk (e) EIKEPM

The Group's primary businesses are the production AEBZEEXKAERNPREE
and sales of coal and the trading of purchased MIHERRIARKREE AR RE
coal in the PRC. The Group’s financial results are P AREB U BERIKER
influenced by the changes in prices of coal, as well AR AEEERREREEEE D
as by the Group’s ability to maintain or renew all WIS ERAEBNTRBEAER
requisite certificates, permits and business licences HERKRBMENMAEERE 7
from relevant regulatory authorities in the PRC AN EERRZEENTE-

which is required for the Group to operate in the
production and sales of coal in the PRC.

42. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 42. RENHszeMEERSHE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEHME
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and REEBNR _ZT—AHAFR_ZF—NOF
liabilities recognised as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 +=—A=1+— EIEEJJ\ZéﬂﬁE&E\
may also be categorised as follows. See notes 3.14 and BEERmMENRAIR NI A RNETDE-
3.19 for explanations about how the category of financial BERESB TEYD BN EEEZS
instruments affects their subsequent measurement. ZRIEE 2 FE3.14%3.19 ©
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE —T—F
TAERT FET
Financial assets cREE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESRHEE 706 26,566
Loans and receivables B K R
— Accounts and bills receivables — YRR R EE 185,358 169,995
— Deposits and other receivables —Re REMEYKHIE 146,954 147,055
— Pledged bank deposits —BEFRITER 577,751 255,922
— Cash and cash equivalents -RekREEEIER 541,224 524,835
1,451,993 1,124,373
Financial liabilities cRAaE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised 3% S5 A5t & >
cost TRAE
— Accounts and bills payables —ERNEXRERER 799,759 390,089
— Other payables and accruals — B 8 < FRIE K B 5
£/ 469,213 471,654
— Bank loans —IRITER 524,985 560,819
— Amount due to an associate —E — & QA
I8 99,005 99,442
1,892,962 1,522,004
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42. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)

(a) Financial instruments not measured at fair

value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include available-for-sale financial assets (non-
current), accounts and bills receivables, deposits and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, accounts and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, amount due to an associate
and bank loans.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value
of accounts and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, accounts and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, amount due to an associate
and bank loans are approximates to their fair value.

The available-for-sale financial assets (non-current)
are measured at cost less impairment at each
reporting date because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant and the probability
of the various estimates is significant. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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42. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 42. EHNHAs 2 EMEEREH
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEMEZ)
(continued)
b) At 31 December 2015 and 2014, all financial by M-E—RFR_FT—NF+—

instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values except as follows:

A=+—B FmEEmIAZK
EEEEAFEIEERNERZ
SRR - HEDA T EDIERRSD -

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2015
categorised into

RIE-RE+ZA=+-HAVEHELSE

Carrying Fair value
amounts at 31 at31
December December

2015 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-%-1% RZF-I%
tzBZt-R t2A=t-A

ZEEE ZOVE £-4 £=4 £=4

HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000

TiEn TEn Tin TEn ThEn

Amount due to an associate* BN -EBENFFE 99,005 N/A - - -
TER

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2014
categorised into
RoF-BEtZA=t-ROHEHELAH

Carrying Fair value
amounts at 31 at 31
December December

2014 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RIZ-ME  RIE-MF
t-A=+-R tZA=1-H

pd AT & b 228

HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000

iR TiEr TERL TiEn iR

Amount due to an associate* Ef—HBENm 99,442 N/A - - -
AER

* The fair values of these balances have not been
determined as the timing of the expected cash flows
of these balances cannot be reasonably determined
because of the relationship.

AE AR DR ARETE -
RERBREEREEZFER
ZIERAREREZFETER
T2 HEE
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43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(a) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns and benefits for stakeholders;

(b) To support the Group'’s stability and growth; and

(c) To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening
the Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities. The Group currently
does not adopt any formal dividend policy. Management
regards total equity of approximately HK$377.8 million
(2014 approximately HK$775.4 million) as capital, for
capital management purpose.
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